
 
 
 

 
 

 
Gloucester Road    Tewkesbury   Glos   GL20 5TT   Member Services Tel: (01684) 272021  Fax: (01684) 272040 

Email: democraticservices@tewkesburybc.gov.uk    Website: www.tewkesburybc.gov.uk 

20 March 2019 
 

Committee Audit and Governance Committee 

Date Thursday, 28 March 2019 

Time of Meeting 2:00 pm 

Venue Tewkesbury Borough Council Offices, 
Severn Room 

 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE ARE REQUESTED 
TO ATTEND 

 

Agenda 

 

1.  ANNOUNCEMENTS  
   
 When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by 

the nearest available fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to 
the visitors’ car park at the front of the building and await further 
instructions (staff should proceed to their usual assembly point. Please 
do not re-enter the building unless instructed to do so.  
 
In the event of a fire any person with a disability should be assisted in 
leaving the building.  

 

   
2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
   
 To receive apologies for absence and advise of any substitutions.   
   
3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   
 Pursuant to the adoption by the Council on 26 June 2012 of the 

Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of Conduct, effective from 1 July 
2012, as set out in Minute No. CL.34, Members are invited to declare 
any interest they may have in the business set out on the Agenda to 
which the approved Code applies. 

 

   

mailto:memberservices@tewkesburybc.gov.uk


 Item Page(s) 

 

 2 

4.  MINUTES 1 - 9 
   
 To approve the Minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on 12 

December 2018. 
 

   
5.  AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 10 - 15 
   
 To consider the Audit and Governance Committee Work Programme.    
   
6.  EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATION YEAR END LETTER 

MARCH 2018 
16 - 18 

   
 To consider the certification year-end letter March 2018.  
   
7.  EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S AUDIT PLAN 2018/19 19 - 34 
   
 To consider the external auditor’s Audit Plan 2018/19.   
   
8.  STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 35 - 56 
   
 To approve the accounting policies to be used during in the preparation 

of the 2018/19 financial statements. 
 

   
9.  ANNUAL SAFEGUARDING UPDATE 57 - 62 
   
 To consider the annual report giving assurance as to the level of the 

Council’s compliance with its safeguarding duty. 
 

   
10.  CALL-IN OF OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
63 - 67 

   
 To consider the progress made in relation to implementing specific 

internal audit recommendations that have been questioned at the 
previous Audit Committee meeting. 

 

   
11.  INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN MONITORING REPORT 68 - 96 
   
 To consider the Internal Audit work undertaken and the assurance given 

on the adequacy of internal controls operating in the systems audited.   
 

   
12.  INTERNAL AUDIT SIX MONTH PLAN 2019/20 97 - 102 
   
 To approve the Internal Audit Six Month Plan 2019/20 (April-

September). 
 

   
13.  MONITORING OF SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 103 - 110 
   
 To consider the monitoring report on the Significant Governance Issues 

identified in the Annual Governance Statement and to review progress 
against the actions.  

 

   
14.  CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 111 - 126 
   
 To consider the risks contained within the corporate risk register and 

assurance that the risks are being effectively managed.   
 

   



 Item Page(s) 

 

 3 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, 24 JULY 2019 

COUNCILLORS CONSTITUTING COMMITTEE 

Councillors: G F Blackwell, K J Cromwell, P A Godwin, B C J Hesketh, S E Hillier-Richardson,          
H C McLain (Chair) and V D Smith (Vice-Chair) plus two vacancies. 

  

 
 
Substitution Arrangements  
 
The Council has a substitution procedure and any substitutions will be announced at the 
beginning of the meeting. 
 
Recording of Meetings  
 
In accordance with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, please be 
aware that the proceedings of this meeting may be recorded and this may include recording of 
persons seated in the public gallery or speaking at the meeting. Please notify the Democratic 
Services Officer if you have any objections to this practice and the Chairman will take reasonable 
steps to ensure that any request not to be recorded is complied with.  
 
Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, Officers, 
the public and press is not obstructed. The use of flash photography and/or additional lighting will 
not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in advance of the meeting.  



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Audit Committee held at the Council Offices, 

Gloucester Road, Tewkesbury on Wednesday, 12 December 2018 commencing 
at 2:00 pm 

 

 
Present: 

 
Chair Councillor H C McLain 
Vice Chair Councillor V D Smith 

 
and Councillors: 

 
R E Allen (Substitute for K J Cromwell), G F Blackwell and P A Godwin 

 
 

AUD.28 ANNOUNCEMENTS  

28.1  The evacuation procedure, as noted on the Agenda, was taken as read. 

28.2  The Chair welcomed the Engagement Lead from Grant Thornton, and the Counter 
Fraud Manager from the Counter Fraud Unit, to the meeting. 

AUD.29 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

29.1  Apologies for absence were received from Councillors K J Cromwell,                                          
S E Hillier-Richardson and V D Smith.  Councillor R E Allen would be acting as a 
substitute for the meeting.  

AUD.30 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

30.1  The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of 
Conduct which was adopted by the Council on 26 June 2012 and took effect from 1 
July 2012. 

30.2  There were no declarations made on this occasion. 

AUD.31 MINUTES  

31.1  The Minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 2018, copies of which had been 
circulated, were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  

AUD.32 AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  

32.1 Attention was drawn to the Audit Committee Work Programme, circulated at Pages 
No. 8-14, which Members were asked to consider. 

32.2 The Head of Corporate Services advised that the Corporate Risk Register would be 
considered at each Committee meeting going forward and the Work Programme 
had been updated accordingly.  It was 

RESOLVED That the Audit Committee Work Programme be NOTED.   

1

Agenda Item 4



AUD.12.12.18 

AUD.33 EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S PROGRESS REPORT  

33.1 Attention was drawn to the external auditor’s progress report, circulated at Pages 
No. 15-26, which set out the progress that had been made in relation to the audit 
plan, together with any emerging national issues and developments that might be 
relevant to the Borough Council.  Members were asked to consider the report. 

33.2 The Engagement Lead from Grant Thornton explained that, at the time of writing, 
work on the housing benefit return was being finalised for submission to the 
Department for Work and Pensions and she was pleased to report that had been 
completed by the deadline; this officially brought the 2017/18 audit work to a close.  
In terms of 2018/19, Grant Thornton would continue to engage with Officers to help 
inform the risk assessment ready for next year.  An interim audit was scheduled for 
February 2019 and the audit plan would be brought to the next Audit Committee 
meeting in March.  There had been some changes to the accounting standards 
which would need to be discussed with Officers in terms of their impacts.  A debrief 
on the 2017/18 audit had taken place earlier that week which had been a good 
opportunity to consider the audit from the perspective of both the external auditors 
and the Council and look at what could be done differently going forward.  The 
remainder of the report comprised sector updates and relevant publications for 
information. 

33.3 A Member was interested to know what extra work was anticipated as a result of 
Universal Credit and how this impacted on future plans.  The Engagement Lead 
indicated that the two key areas for which Grant Thornton had responsibility were 
the accounts - and how they flowed to the financial statements - and the housing 
benefit work.  They were still working through the specifics to try to understand 
Universal Credit in the context of the accounts; the external auditors were principally 
interested in whether the accounts showed a fair and true reflection of the income 
and expenditure of an authority, but it was too early to say what the direct response 
would be.  She provided assurance that Grant Thornton would advise Members as 
more information became available.   

33.4 A Member queried whether the impact of the changes in respect of the accounting 
standards would be financial or in relation to time.  The Engagement Lead 
confirmed that the timeframe for preparing the accounts had not changed but there 
had been changes to two of the significant accounting standards around the 
recognition of income and, specifically, in terms of the financial instruments – there 
would be more requirements and changes in terms of local authority investments as 
the standards tried to give more transparency about debts.  The Head of Finance 
and Asset Management reassured Members that the Finance Team was aware of 
the changes and did not foresee any problems with the accounts going forward. 

33.5 It was 

 RESOLVED That the external auditor’s progress report be NOTED. 

AUD.34 COUNTER FRAUD UNIT REPORT  

34.1  Attention was drawn to the report of the Head of Finance and Asset Management, 
circulated at Pages No. 27-32, which provided assurance over the counter fraud 
activities of the Council.  Members were asked to consider the six monthly update 
from the Counter Fraud Unit and make comments as necessary. 

 

 

 

 

2



AUD.12.12.18 

34.2 The Counter Fraud Manager drew attention to the 2018/19 work plan, attached at 
Appendix 1, which gave an overview of the work being carried out.  She explained 
that a full review of the housing list had been undertaken to ensure people had 
been included in the correct bands and this would become an annual piece of work 
for the Counter Fraud Unit to deliver across the county.  Whilst undertaking this, 
the Counter Fraud Unit had also processed the related National Fraud Initiative 
anomalies which had resulted in 44 applications being removed from the waiting 
list and one banding change.  She went on to advise that, from September 2018, 
the Counter Fraud Unit had been tasked with undertaking the investigation of the 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme and updates would be provided as this was rolled 
out.  One significant piece of work was the full review of the rating list; this was 
quite onerous in terms of going out and looking at properties but it was considered 
to be worthwhile and would be recommended to other Councils.  She went on to 
advise that, following a move away from joint working with the transfer of housing 
benefit investigation, the Counter Fraud Unit was working with the Department for 
Work and Pensions again in recognition of a disconnect with the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme which had gone live on 26 November 2018 and there would 
now be a joint investigation of housing benefit, Universal Credit and the Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme.  She hoped that more work could be undertaken with 
other departments within the Council next year. 

34.3  In respect of investigating fraud, a Member queried whether the Counter Fraud 
Unit was proactive in seeking it out, or whether it reacted to staff suspicions of 
anomalies, and the Counter Fraud Manager confirmed that it did both – it was able 
to take referrals and also worked to a list of tasks set for the year.  In response to a 
query regarding the verification of the housing list, Members were advised that it 
was very difficult to establish norms as it related to people and where they wanted 
to be housed.  This meant that the list was as good as it could be at that particular 
point in time; notwithstanding this, there was a requirement to look at the process 
and to make improvements through data sharing to ensure that everyone got what 
they were entitled to.  The Head of Corporate Services made the point that it was 
not just down to the Counter Fraud Team to identify fraud so it was important that 
skills were transferred to the Housing Team in order for incidents to be recognised 
from the outset.  It was to be borne in mind that some fraud identified by the 
Counter Fraud Unit could have been picked up by the service had there been a 
change in process or raising of awareness. 

34.4 It was 

RESOLVED That the six monthly update from the Counter Fraud Unit be 
NOTED. 

AUD.35 LOCAL AUTHORITY SERIOUS AND ORGANISED CRIME CHECKLIST  

35.1  The report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at Pages No. 33-54, 
asked Members to consider the completed Serious and Organised Crime Checklist 
and the action plan arising from the checklist. 

35.2  The Head of Corporate Services explained that public sector procurement was 
vulnerable to infiltration from serious and organised crime groups as there were 
multiple opportunities for exploitation.  In order to better understand the nature and 
scale of the threat in England, joint pilot work had been undertaken by local 
authorities and police forces in seven areas and, as a result, ten links had been 
identified between publicly procured services and organised crime.  One of the 
actions identified to help tackle this threat and reduce vulnerability was using the 
Serious and Organised Crime Checklist which enabled authorities to assess the 
risks within their organisations.  The checklist for Tewkesbury Borough, attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report, asked a number of key questions and had been 
completed by Senior Officers across various services together with the Counter 

3



AUD.12.12.18 

Fraud Unit.  One area identified as needing improvement related to general 
awareness training for staff involved in purchasing and this was included in the 
arising action plan, attached at Appendix 2 to the report.   

35.3  Members were advised that Appendix 3 to the report set out a framework for an 
audit on serious organised crime and covered areas such as procurement, Human 
Resources and good governance.  The Internal Audit Team and Counter Fraud 
Unit would review these activities and a number of days had been allocated in their 
respective work plans to commence this work.  As with all audit work, the findings 
would be reported to the Audit Committee.  A Member queried how many days had 
been allocated for the audit and whether there was adequate time to carry out the 
work.  The Head of Corporate Services advised that Page No. 48 of the report set 
out the areas the Internal Audit Team was concentrating on and he confirmed that 
15 days had been allocated within the current Six Month Audit Plan; these were 
mainly around Human Resources activities with the remainder of actions being 
covered over the course of three or four Audit Plans through joint working with the 
Counter Fraud Unit. 

35.4 With regard to the Serious and Organised Crime Action Plan, a Member noted that 
this centred around things which could occur within the authority and he 
questioned the extent to which the Council was involved in fraudulent activity 
outside, for example within small businesses, and whether any work was done with 
Trading Standards.  The Counter Fraud Unit Manager confirmed that the Counter 
Fraud Unit had a Memorandum of Understanding with Trading Standards.  She 
made reference to a case involving modern slavery which was linked to a planning  
issue, where a large number of caravans were located on a site, which highlighted 
the importance of raising awareness with staff, particularly those who were 
frequently out on site - such as Planning Enforcement, Environmental Health and 
Housing Officers - so they were able to recognise potential issues and refer them 
accordingly.    

35.5 Having considered the information provided, it was 

RESOLVED That the completed Serious and Organised Crime Checklist and 
the arising action plan be NOTED.  

AUD.36 INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING REPORT  

36.1  The report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at Pages No. 55-83, 
detailed the findings of Internal Audit for the period September-November 2018.  
Members were asked to consider the audit work completed and the assurance 
given on the adequacy of the internal controls operating within the systems audited. 

36.2  Members were advised that full details of the work undertaken were attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report.  An audit of financials e-ordering had been carried out 
following the introduction of this new purchasing module which had replaced the 
paper purchase orders that had been used on an ad-hoc basis.  The system had 
been rolled out to all services and Internal Audit had checked how well it was 
managed.  Overall, there was a satisfactory level of control and the authorisation 
level in the system was correctly inputted. One area for improvement had been 
identified as a number of orders were being raised at the point when the final 
invoice was received; orders should be raised at the point of the order so it could be 
reflected in the appropriate budget.  All users had received training on the module 
but it would be necessary for more targeted training and a further recommendation 
had also been made around monitoring.  The Head of Corporate Services went on 
to confirm that departments were required to set-up their own suppliers with 
supporting evidence which required validation and authorisation from a member of 
the Finance Team prior to any payments being made in order to mitigate risk of 
fraud.  A recommendation had been made around Disabled Facilities Grants as 

4



AUD.12.12.18 

there was currently no record of commitment maintained by the service to see what 
was left in the budget.  Members were advised there was adequate separation of 
duties within the invoices sampled; however, it had been identified that, as the 
Finance Team processed invoices for payment, there was potential that the same 
Officer could raise a purchase order, goods receipt and process the payment 
without checks or validation from another Officer.  This was considered to be low 
risk and verbal assurance had been given that two Officers were always involved in 
the process; notwithstanding this, it was recommended that a monthly report of all 
purchase orders raised within Financial Services be reviewed and signed-off by the 
Finance Manager to confirm payments were genuine.  A Member queried what 
supporting evidence was required in order to set-up a new supplier and was advised 
that it was necessary to validate that it was an official supplier so it would usually be 
headed notepaper from the supplier; the information was not taken at face value so 
additional checks would be carried out, for example, a second source would be 
used to check the contact telephone number etc.  The Internal Auditor confirmed 
that, once the supplier information had been entered into the system, this went to 
the Finance Team to review the bank account details. 

36.3 Members were informed that an audit had also been carried out of Adelante, the 
Council’s new income management system which managed payments taken by 
card and cash and performed reconciliations on payments received through the 
bank.  Overall, there was a satisfactory level of control and two technical 
recommendations around PCI-DSS compliance and retention of card details had 
been assigned to the Head of Corporate Services and Head of Finance and Asset 
Management.  There was a good level of control in relation to the day to day 
operation of the system - refunds were being done for a legitimate reason and were 
promptly and accurately accounted, payment transactions were correctly allocated 
and promptly receipted within the bank, and bank receipts were reconciled within 
the system on a prompt basis – as such, there were no recommendations in relation 
to this aspect of the audit.  In response to a Member query regarding the risk in 
relation to non-compliance with the General Data Protection Regulation, the Head of 
Corporate Services confirmed that this was only being highlighted as a potential risk 
- there was nothing to suggest any non-compliance currently - and this was being 
measured against. 

36.4 With regard to the business rates audit, Members were advised that there was a 
good level of control in relation to legislative and policy compliance.  There was a 
satisfactory level of control in respect of operational risks and a process for 
identifying new business rateable properties was in place whereby notifications 
were received from the Planning department.  This was being further enhanced by 
the full rating list review being carried out by the Counter Fraud Unit.  One 
recommendation had been made to review the transitional relief certificates to 
accounts and to apply these to accounts at the same time the alteration to the rating 
list was processed.  The Council had received 17 schedules from the Valuation 
Office since it had started issuing transitional relief certificates in April 2017, five of 
which were yet to be implemented at the time of the audit; this was due to a lack of 
awareness of the certificates, and how to enter them into the system, which had 
now been resolved.  It was pleasing to note that the Council was transparent in 
publicising the support offered to businesses, particularly in terms of the relief 
businesses could apply for, as demonstrated through a review of the information on 
the Council’s website.  It was noted that it was common in small authorities for a 
single Officer to do a particular job and a recommendation had been made around 
ethics and good governance in relation to spot checking and recording the Area 
Revenues Officer’s business rate activities within Northgate on a regular basis.  
Members were advised that there had been delays in recovery action on some 
accounts sampled; however, the Revenues and Benefits Manager had addressed 
this during her 12 months in post and the Area Revenue Officer was now dedicated 
purely to business rates, as opposed to other revenues tasks, and data reported to 

5



AUD.12.12.18 

the last Overview and Scrutiny Committee suggested this had not been detrimental 
to the overall collection rate.  In terms of the manually entered exemptions and 
parameters being entered into the system correctly, a sample of the accounts had 
confirmed that the system calculations were accurate.  A Member recalled that the 
Council had written-off considerable sums in the past for uncollected business rates 
when a company had gone out of business and he questioned whether the owner of 
the building could be pursued for the debt.  The Audit Manager explained that it did 
not matter if the company owned the building, rather it was dependent on who held 
the lease.  Unfortunately, the lease could be for 10 or 20 years and, until it was 
revoked by the owner, only the person renting the premises could be traced.  The 
Head of Corporate Services indicated that work had been carried out previously in 
relation to write-offs and the Internal Audit team was satisfied that process was 
robust and transparent.  The Head of Finance and Asset Management confirmed 
that, where debts were written-off, there was a bad debt provision so the costs were 
shared with central government and Gloucestershire County Council. 

36.5  Members were advised that a limited level of control had been identified in relation 
to the audit of vehicle fleet management for a combination of reasons.  Adequate 
maintenance records were retained for each vehicle for the prescribed period; 
however, there was a contractual requirement for Ubico to provide an annual 
service report which had not been forthcoming.  As such, a recommendation had 
been made that Ubico and the Council should agree the format of that report and 
how it should come forward.  In addition, it had been identified that there was no 
stock control system in place in relation to the depot’s bulk order purchases and 
consumables – this was not just a Tewkesbury Borough Council issue and needed 
to be addressed across the board within Ubico.  A recommendation had been made 
around the process of identifying trends for rechargeable repairs – for example 
there may be links to a specific driver, route or vehicle - and the Head of Community 
Services was raising this at the partnership board.  It was noted that, of 95 
inspection sheets reviewed during the audit, 35 had made comment on the 
cleanliness of the vehicles and, in some cases, the vehicle had been “too dirty to 
fully inspect”.  As such, processes had been put in place to strengthen the cleaning 
regime and this would be followed-up in due course.  In terms of vehicle usage, it 
had been noted that two vehicles were being used across different local authorities 
in line with the ethos of efficiency; however, this was problematic as each authority 
had its own vehicle fleet.  For example, a food waste vehicle - which had been 
procured outside of the full procurement process – was found to be unsuitable for 
use by Tewkesbury Borough Council and had subsequently been lent to Stroud 
District Council, which was meeting the cost of a replacement vehicle that was 
being hired for food waste collection, but there was no formal agreement in place to 
support the arrangement and to reflect the depreciation of the vehicle.  Similarly, a 
specialised street cleansing vehicle owned by Tewkesbury Borough Council had 
been used in both Tewkesbury and Cheltenham Boroughs between September 
2017 and April 2018 but, in accordance with the terms of the contract, formal 
reporting of the usage of the vehicle should have taken place with consideration 
given to cost implications.  Confirmation was provided that there was health and 
safety reporting with personal, vehicle and property accidents and near misses 
discussed at the monthly client monitoring meetings and the quarterly 
Environmental Services Partnership Board meetings; however, more specific 
information needed to be provided to fully comply with the vehicle hire contract 
conditions and the frequency of which accident data was notified to the Council 
should be in line with the contract.  At the time of the audit, there were no Key 
Performance Indicators (KPIs) in relation to the vehicle hire contract between Ubico 
and the Council to determine how well the vehicle fleet was being managed; this 
had previously been flagged up as an issue by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  The Head of Corporate Services indicated that a suite of new KPIs was 
due to be implemented and this would be addressed in the follow-up audit.  Whilst 
he had not seen the KPIs, it was likely they would include vehicle-related KPIs in 

6



AUD.12.12.18 

relation to the retention of the Driver and Vehicle Standard Agency (DVSA) green 
rating, which covered maintenance and servicing of vehicles, supported by others 
which were specific to the Council’s fleet.  It was noted that there was no resource 
for a dedicated fleet monitoring officer within the Council, and the Head of 
Community Services had taken this discussion to Management Team, so a 
recommendation had been made to ensure that ‘fleet’ was included as an Agenda 
item at Environmental Services Partnership Board meetings.  Finally, Members 
were advised that the audit had confirmed there was financial reporting at the 
monthly Board meetings.  Notwithstanding this, an initial sample of 2017/18 
expenditure had been traced from the vehicle job sheets and order forms to the 
finance system and had shown that, in 9 out of 10 cases, expenditure totalling 
£2,686 had been incorrectly allocated to Cheltenham Borough Council.  The Head 
of Corporate Services advised that verbal confirmation had been received from 
Ubico that all invoices for that financial year had been reviewed and procedures had 
been amended to mitigate future miscoding errors; this was corroborated by 
additional testing of 2018/19 expenditure. 

36.6  During the debate which ensued, a Member questioned whether drivers were made 
to pay for any accidents they had been involved in and confirmation was provided 
that they were covered by Ubico’s insurance.  The Member also queried whether 
the money which had been incorrectly allocated to Cheltenham Borough Council 
would be recouped and the Head of Finance and Asset Management advised that 
the invoice had not yet been received but provision would be made for this to be 
recharged.  Another Member raised concern that overweight vehicles could be a 
growing problem, given the amount of new residential development in the borough 
and subsequent increase in loads, so this would need to be closely monitored in 
future.  The Internal Auditor explained that Ubico would be at risk of losing its 
operator licence if it failed to comply with DVSA standards and continued to 
overload vehicles.  In response to a query regarding the annual service report, the 
Head of Finance and Asset Management advised that this was a requirement set 
out in the hire agreement and he provided assurance that a report for 2018/19 
would be provided by May 2019.  A Member questioned whether stock 
management was a problem for other partners and was advised the issue related to 
Tewkesbury Borough Council sharing the Cheltenham Borough Council depot and 
the processes in place for purchasing equipment.  With regard to the lack of 
resources for fleet monitoring, a Member questioned whether the onus was on the 
Council or Ubico.  The Head of Finance and Asset Management confirmed that 
contract monitoring was the responsibility of the Council and conversations had 
been taking place as to whether the money which it input into the contract was 
being used effectively and, if so, whether more was needed to ensure that all 
elements were being monitored correctly. 

36.7  Members were advised that Appendix 2 to the report included a list of 
recommendations reviewed in the period and their status.  Of the 15 
recommendations followed-up during the period, six had been implemented, three 
partially implemented and six were yet to be implemented.  Of the recommendations 
not yet implemented, none were categorised as ‘high’ although some had been 
outstanding for a length of time and it was therefore intended to ask the responsible 
Officers to attend the next Audit Committee meeting in order to explain their status.  
In future, it was proposed that Officers must attend the Committee if the expected 
implementation date had slipped more than once.  A Member asked for more 
information regarding the agreement between Tewkesbury Borough Council and 
Winchcombe Town Trust in relation to the Tourist Information Centre audit and was 
informed that Winchcombe Town Trust owned the building from which the Tourist 
Information Centre operated, therefore, it was expected there should be a lease 
agreement between the two parties to define responsibility; this could not be 
produced at the time of the audit and had not come forward since, although the 
comment made by the Economic and Community Development Manager suggested 

7



AUD.12.12.18 

that there was one - if that proved to be incorrect, an agreement would need to be 
drawn up urgently.  In response to a query, the Head of Finance and Asset 
Management advised that, whilst the Council was responsible for some of the 
utilities, he was not aware of any responsibilities for maintenance, although that 
could not be confirmed without the lease agreement.  It was noted that the 
implementation date for this recommendation had initially been set for August 2017 
before being changed to September 2018 and, most recently, February 2019 which 
Members felt was unacceptable.  The Head of Finance and Asset Management 
confirmed there was an expectation this would be completed by the Audit 
Committee meeting in March 2019 and, if that was not the case, the Economic and 
Community Development Manager would be required to attend the meeting to give 
an explanation.  The Committee agreed that responsible Officers should be required 
to attend the next meeting for any recommendations which were not ‘green’ and the 
Head of Corporate Services undertook to report this to Management Team.   

36.8  Having considered the information provided, it was 

RESOLVED 1.   That the Internal Audit Monitoring Report be NOTED. 

2.   That, for any recommendations that had not been 
implemented where the target implementation date had 
slipped more than once, the responsible Officer be required 
to attend the next Audit Committee to give an explanation. 

AUD.37 RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AND CORPORATE RISK REGISTER  

37.1  Attention was drawn to the report of the Head of Corporate Services, circulated at 
Pages No. 84-112, which attached the updated Risk Management Strategy and the 
Corporate Risk Register.  Members were asked to consider the Risk Management 
Strategy and recommend it to the Executive Committee for approval and to consider 
the risks and mitigating controls within the corporate risk register. 

37.2 The Head of Corporate Services explained that the Risk Management Strategy, 
attached at Appendix 1 to the report, formalised the Council’s risk management 
arrangements and had been written to provide guidance on how corporate risks and 
projects could be evaluated and scored on a consistent basis.  The strategy was 
proportionate to the size and needs of the Council and the key element was the 
reinstatement of the Corporate Risk Register, a high-level tool to demonstrate risks 
and control measures in a concise manner.  The scoring within the Corporate Risk 
Register was based around three stages: gross risk score – the inherent risk without 
any mitigating controls in place; current risk score – the assessed risk after the 
application of controls; and target risk score – the proposed risk score by applying 
future controls if the current risk score was deemed to be too high.  Internal Audit 
work would support the integrity of the register in ensuring that risks were being 
effectively managed and would give assurance in terms of whether the register was 
complete and if the controls detailed within it were in place and working effectively.  
The register would be a live document which would be taken to Management Team 
on a monthly basis and would be a regular item on Audit Committee Agenda going 
forward. 

37.3  Members expressed the view that the Risk Management Strategy was justified and 
agreed that the Corporate Risk Register was a useful tool.  It was subsequently 

RESOLVED          1. That it be RECOMMENDED TO THE EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE that the Risk Management Strategy be 
APPROVED. 

2.That the risks and mitigating controls within the Corporate Risk 
Register be NOTED. 

8



AUD.12.12.18 

AUD.38 MONITORING OF SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES  

38.1  The report of the Borough Solicitor, circulated at Pages No. 113-120, set out the 
Significant Governance Issues and the action to be taken to address them as 
identified in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.  Members were asked to 
consider the progress made against those issues. 

38.2  Members were advised that the table set out at Appendix 1 to the report comprised 
the Significant Governance Issues and the proposed actions and timescale for 
completion, with a further column indicating the progress as at 30 November 2018.  
The Borough Solicitor indicated that there had been movement on all actions and all 
would be completed within the financial year.  It was  

RESOLVED That progress against the Significant Governance Issues 
identified in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement be 
NOTED. 

 The meeting closed at 3:20 pm 

 
 

9



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
 
 

Addition to 28 March 2018 

  
Deletion from 28 March 2018 

 External Auditor’s Progress Report – not required as information covered in other reports from the External Auditors. 

 Internal Audit Peer Review – Moved to 24 July 2019 

 
 

Committee Date: 24 July 2019  

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Counter-Fraud Unit Report  To consider the annual update on the 
work of the Counter Fraud Team. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management / Counter Fraud 
Manager. 

No. 

External Auditor’s Audit 
Findings 

To consider the external auditors’ Audit 
Findings 2018/19. 

External Auditors. No. 

Letter of Representation To consider the S151 Officer’s Letter of 
Representation on the closure of the 
accounts for the year ended 31 March 
2019. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management 

No. 

Statement of Accounts 
2018/19 

To approve the Statement of Accounts 
2018/19. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management. 

No.  

External Auditor’s Fee 
Letters 2019/20 

To consider the external auditors’ fee 
letter in relation to the audit work to be 
undertaken during 2019/20. 

 

 

External Auditors. No. 

10

A
genda Item

 5



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

Committee Date: 24 July 2019  

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Internal Audit Plan 
Monitoring Report 

To consider the Internal Audit work 
undertaken and the assurance given on 
the adequacy of internal controls 
operating in the systems audited. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Internal Audit Annual Report 
2018/19 

To consider the Internal Audit Annual 
Report 2018/19 and the assurance from 
the work undertaken during the year on 
the level of internal control within the 
systems audited during the year. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Annual Governance 
Statement 2018/19 

To approve the Annual Governance 
Statement 2018/19. 

 

Borough Solicitor. No. 

Corporate Risk Register To consider the risk register and the risks 
contained within it. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Internal Audit Peer Review 
Update 

To receive an update on the progress 
made in implementing the 
recommendations arising from the 
independent review of Internal Audit. 

Head of Corporate Services. Yes – moved from meeting on 28 
March 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

 
 
 

Committee Date: 18 September 2019 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 To consider the external auditors’ Audit 
Letter 2018/19. 

External Auditors. No – Brought forward in line with new 
deadlines for the Statement of 
Accounts. 

Annual Report on Health and 
Safety Activities 

To consider the adequacy of the 
Council’s health and safety 
arrangements. 

Head of Community Services. No. 

Internal Audit Plan 
Monitoring Report 

To consider the Internal Audit work 
undertaken and the assurance given on 
the adequacy of internal controls 
operating in the systems audited. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Internal Audit Six Month Plan 
2019/20 

To approve the Internal Audit Six Month 
Plan 2019/20 (Oct-Mar). 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Monitoring of Significant 
Governance Issues 

To consider the monitoring report on the 
Significant Governance Issues identified 
in the Annual Governance Statement and 
to review progress against the actions. 

Borough Solicitor. No. 

Corporate Risk Register To consider the risk register and the risks 
contained within it. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

12



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

 
 
 

Committee Date: 11 December 2019 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item previously been 
deferred? Details and date of 
deferment required   

External Auditor’s Progress 
Report 

To consider the external auditors’ report 
on progress against planned outputs. 

External Auditors. No. 

External Auditor’s 
Certification Year End Letter 
March 2019 

To consider the certification year-end 
letter March 2019. 

External Auditors. No.  

Internal Audit Plan 
Monitoring Report 

To consider the Internal Audit work 
undertaken and the assurance given on 
the adequacy of internal controls 
operating in the systems audited. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

Monitoring of Significant 
Governance Issues 

To consider the monitoring report on the 
Significant Governance Issues identified 
in the Annual Governance Statement and 
to review progress against the actions. 

Borough Solicitor. No. 

Counter Fraud Unit Update To consider the six monthly update from 
the Counter Fraud Unit. 

Head of Finance and Asset 
Management / Counter Fraud 
Manager. 

No. 

Corporate Risk Register To consider the risk register and the risks 
contained within it. 

Head of Corporate Services. No. 

 
 
 
 
 

13



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

Committee Date - 25 March 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item 
previously been 
deferred? Details and 
date of deferment 
required   

External Auditor’s Certification Year End 
Letter March 2019 

To consider the certification year-end letter 
March 2019. 

External Auditors. No.  

External Auditor’s Progress Report To consider the external auditors’ report on 
progress against planned outputs. 

External Auditors. No. 

External Auditor’s Audit Plan 2019/20 To consider the external auditors’ Audit Plan 
2019/20. 

External Auditors. No. 

Statement of Accounting Policies To approve the accounting policies to be used 
during the 2018/19 closedown. 

Finance Manager. No. 

Critical Judgements and Assumptions Made 
During the Preparation of the Statement of 
Accounts 

To approve the critical accounting judgements 
that will be used in completing the 2018/19 
annual accounts and to note the key sources of 
estimation uncertainty. 

Finance Manager. No. 

Internal Audit Plan Monitoring Report To consider the Internal Audit work undertaken 
and the assurance given on the adequacy of 
internal controls operating in the systems 
audited. 

Head of Corporate 
Services. 

No. 

Internal Audit Six Month Plan 2020/21 To approve the Internal Audit Six Month Plan 
2020/21 (Apr-Sept). 

Head of Corporate 
Services. 

No. 

Monitoring of Significant Governance Issues To consider the monitoring report on the 
Significant Governance Issues identified in the 
Annual Governance Statement and to review 
progress against the actions. 

Borough Solicitor. No. 

14



NB – Changes from previous work programme highlighted in bold 

Committee Date - 25 March 2020 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Has agenda item 
previously been 
deferred? Details and 
date of deferment 
required   

Annual Update on Council’s Safeguarding 
Arrangements 

 

Annual report to give assurance as to the level 
of the Council’s compliance with its 
safeguarding duty. 

(To include Gloucestershire Safeguarding 
Children Board Section 11 Self-Assessment) 

Head of Community 
Services. 

No. 

Internal Audit Peer Review Update To receive an update on the progress made in 
implementing the recommendations arising 
from the independent review of Internal Audit. 

Head of Corporate 
Services. 

No. 

Corporate Risk Register To consider the risk register and the risks 
contained within it. 

Head of Corporate 
Services. 

No. 

 
 

OTHER ITEMS 

Agenda Item Overview of Agenda Item Lead Officer  Comments   

    

    

 
 
 
 

15



 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
2 Glass Wharf 
Temple Quay 
Bristol 
BS2 0EL 
 

T +44 (0)117 305 7600 
F +44 (0)117 955 4934 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   
 
   

   

Chartered Accountants. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. 
Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton 
UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton 
International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. 
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 
Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details.  

grantthornton.co.uk

Our ref: TBC 201718HB/JM/GH 
 

 

 

 

Dear Simon 

Certification work for Tewkesbury Borough Council for year ended 31 
March 2018 

We are required to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy claim submitted by Tewkesbury Borough Council 
('the Council'). This certification typically takes place six to nine months after the claim period and 
represents a final but important part of the process to confirm the Council's entitlement to funding. 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gave the Secretary of State power to transfer Audit 
Commission responsibilities to other bodies. Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) took on the 
transitional responsibilities for HB COUNT issued by the Audit Commission in February 2015. 

We have certified the Housing Benefit subsidy claim for the financial year 2017/18 relating to subsidy 
claimed of £18.7 million. Further details are set out in Appendix A. 

We identified a number of issues from our certification work which we wish to highlight for your attention. 
There were a number of errors from the extended testing that we carried out on this year's subsidy 
return which recurred from 2016/17. The extrapolated financial impact on the claim, which we have 
reported to the DWP, was again relatively insignificant to the total subsidy receivable. 

As a result of the errors identified, the claim was amended and qualified, and we reported our findings to 
the DWP. The DWP may require the Council to undertake further work or provide assurances on the 
errors we have identified. 

The indicative fee for 2017/18 for the Council was based on the final 2015/16 certification fees, reflecting 
the amount of work required by the auditor to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy claim that year. The 
indicative scale fee set by PSAA for the Council for 2017/18 was £9,110. We have proposed a variation 
to this fee to reflect the increased levels of errors and subsequent testing required.  This variation has 
been discussed with officers and is subject to final approval with the PSAA.  This is set out in more detail 
in Appendix B. 

Yours sincerely 
 

 

 
Grant Thornton UK LLP  

Simon Dix 
Head of Finance and Asset Management 
Tewkesbury Borough Council 
Council Offices 
Gloucester Road 
Tewkesbury 
GL20 5TT 

28 February 2019 
 

16

Agenda Item 6



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2 

Appendix A - Details of claims and returns certified for 2017/18 

 

Claim or 
return 

Value Amended? Amendment 
value 

Qualified?  
 

Comments 

Housing 
benefits 
subsidy claim 

£18.7m Yes £300 Yes See below 

 

Findings from certification of housing benefits subsidy claim – matters resulting in qualification 

 

LHA Rates  

Our initial testing identified one error out of 13 cases where the incorrect Broad Rental Market Area 
(BRMA) rate had been applied to the claimant’s entitlement. This issue was also noted in 2015/16 and 
2016/17 and required further testing.  

Overall we tested 53 cases, 13 in the initial sample population and 40 in the further testing. The further 
testing identified another 7 errors of which 4 had no impact on subsidy. The nature of the population 
meant that even significant additional work would not allow us to make amendments to the claim form. 
The extrapolated value of the errors was £260. This error has been identified in 2016/17 and 2017/18 
and will require us to undertake further testing in 2018/19. 

 

Claimant income  

No errors were identified from our initial testing. An additional sample of 40 cases was selected due to 
earned income calculation errors identified in the prior year.  

We tested a sample of 40 cases with earned income, and from this one error was identified resulting in 
the overpayment of benefit. The nature of the population meant that even significant additional work 
would not allow us to make amendments to the claim form. The extrapolated value of the errors was 
£5,608. This error has been identified in 2016/17 and 2017/18 and will require us to undertake further 
testing in 2018/19. 

 

Misclassification of Rent Allowance Overpayments  

No errors were identified from our initial testing. An additional sample of 40 cases was selected due to 
misclassification errors identified in the prior year.  

We tested a sample of 40 cases from the LA error population and from this, three errors were noted. The 
nature of the population meant that even significant additional work would not allow us to make 
amendments to the claim form. The extrapolated value of the errors was £6,692. This error has been 
identified in 2016/17 and 2017/18 and will require us to undertake further testing in 2018/19 

 

Reconciliation Cells  

Our work identified that the ‘In-year reconciliation’ cell 130 did not agree to the headline cell 94 with a 
difference of £50 being reported in our Qualification letter.  

 

 

 

 

17



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3 

 

Adjustments required to the DWP return 

Fuel Allowance  

We identified 10 errors in our initial sample of 13 cases where the incorrect fuel allowance rate had been 
applied. The national rate for fuel allowance is £17.23 in 2017/18 and testing identified that assessors 
were using the 2015/16 rate of £16.48. This error required us to undertake further testing and, as the 
population was under 100, we carried out testing of the full caseload population.  

Further testing of 58 cases identified an additional 25 errors, all of which resulted in an overpayment of 
entitlement. The total value of the errors was £253 which required an adjustment to the claim for this 
value. This error was also identified in 2016/17 and will require further testing in 2018/19.  

 

Misclassification of Non HRA Overpayments  

No errors were identified from our initial testing. Additional testing was required due to misclassification 
errors identified in the prior year.  The Council tested 100% of the cases these errors affected in 2017/18 
and we reviewed the findings, undertaking sample checks where required.  

The 100% testing identified three cases where Non-HRA overpayments had been incorrectly classified 
as eligible error, when it should have been technical error. The total value of the errors was £567 which 
required an amendment to the claim for this value. Errors have been identified in both 2016/17 and 
2017/18 and will require us to undertake further testing in 2018/19. 

 

Appendix B: Fees for 2017/18 certification work 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Claim or return 2015/16 
fee (£)  

2017/18 
indicative 
fee (£) 

2017/18 
actual fee 
(£) 

Variance 
(£) 

Explanation for variances 

Housing benefits 
subsidy claim 
(BEN01) 

£9,110 £9,110 £13,421 £4,311 Increased fee due to additional 
40+ testing required in 2017-18 
compared to 2015-16 with an 
additional 71 cases required.  
Further work also required to 
populate evidence for Fuel rate, 
BRMA and overpayment testing 
completed. 

Total £9,110 £9,110 £13,421 £4,311  

18



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2019

Tewkesbury Borough Council 

March 2019

19

A
genda Item

 7



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Introduction & headlines 3

2. Key matters impacting our audit                                                                                             4                                                   

3. Significant risks identified      5

4. Other matters 7

5. Materiality 8

8.    Value for Money arrangements                                                                                           9

9. Audit logistics, team & fees                                                                                                 10

10. Early Close                                                                                                                  11

11. Independence & non-audit services 12

Appendices

A. Audit Approach 14

B. External Audit Commitment 15

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the
Authority or all weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.
We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for,
nor intended for, any other purpose.

Your key Grant Thornton 
team members are:

Julie Masci

Associate Director

T:  02920 347506

E: julie.masci@uk.gt.com

Grace Hawkins

Assistant Manager

T: 02920 347542

E: grace.e.hawkins@uk.gt.com

Tony Era

In Charge Accountant

T: 02920 347504

E: tony.jd.era@uk.gt.com

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members 
is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

20



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19 3

Introduction & headlines
Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory
audit of Tewkesbury Borough Council (‘the Council’) for those charged with
governance.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin
and end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities
are also set out [n the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities
issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for
appointing us as auditor of Tewkesbury Borough Council. We draw your attention to
both of these documents on the PSAA website.

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

• financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance (the Audit committee); and

• Value for Money arrangements in place at the Authority for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit Committee of
your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Authority to ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for. We have considered how the Authority is fulfilling these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Authority's business and is
risk based. We will be using our new audit methodology and tool, LEAP, for the 2018/19 audit.
It will enable us to be more responsive to changes that may occur in your organisation.

Significant risks Those risks requiring special audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have been 
identified as:

• Management over-ride of controls (presumed risk under ISA 240)

• Valuation of property, plant and equipment 

• Valuation of pension fund net liability

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit 
Findings (ISA 260) Report.

Materiality We have determined planning materiality to be £750k (PY £739k), which equates to approx 2% of your prior year gross expenditure. We 
are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. 
Clearly trivial has been set at £37k (PY £37k). 

Value for Money arrangements Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identified the following VFM significant risks:

• Medium Term Financial Strategy – Our 2017-18 VFM conclusion highlighted that the Council must ensure it develops a robust savings 
plan in order to deliver its annual budgets with sufficient capacity to manage its emerging cost pressures over the duration of its 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).  The ongoing challenge of increasing service costs, as well as the reliance on the 
continuation of the New Homes Bonus and anticipated use of reserves enforces the need to identify additional sources of income in 
order to secure its financial sustainability for the future.

Audit logistics Our interim visit will take place in February 2019 and our final visit will take place in June/July 2019.  Our key deliverables are this Audit 
Plan and our Audit Findings Report. Our audit approach is detailed in Appendix A.

Our fee for the audit will be £34,589 (PY: £44,921) for the Council. 

Independence We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are 
independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

21



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19 4

Key matters impacting our audit

Factors

Our response

.

The wider economy and political uncertainty

Local Government funding continues to be stretched with 
increasing cost pressures and  demand from residents. At 31 
December 2018 the Council were reporting a surplus of £664,478 
on the revenue budget. However, a funding gap of £3.5m has 
been identified over the five year life of the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) to 2023/24. In order for the Council to 
remain financially sustainable, a number of savings and 
alternative income streams will need to be identified. 

At a national level, the government continues its negotiation with 
the EU over Brexit, and future arrangements remain clouded in 
uncertainty (update as appropriate). The Council will need to 
ensure that it is prepared for all outcomes, including in terms of 
any impact on contracts, on service delivery and on its support for 
local people and businesses. 

• We will consider your arrangements for managing and 
reporting your financial resources as part of our work in 
reaching our Value for Money conclusion. We will review the 
Council’s progress against previously agreed 
recommendations within the 2017/18 Audit Findings Report.

• We will consider whether your financial position leads to 
material uncertainty about the going concern of the Council 
and will review related disclosures in the financial statements. 

Changes to the CIPFA 2018/19 
Accounting Code 

The most significant changes relate to 
the adoption of:

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which 
impacts on the classification and 
measurement of financial assets and 
introduces a new impairment model. 

• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers which introduces a 
five step approach to revenue 
recognition.

New audit methodology

We will be using our new audit methodology and 
tool, LEAP, for the 2018/19 audit. It will enable us 
to be more responsive to changes that may occur 
in your organisation and more easily incorporate 
our knowledge of the Council into our risk 
assessment and testing approach. 

• We will keep you informed of 
changes to the financial reporting 
requirements for 2018/19 through 
on-going discussions and invitations 
to our technical update workshops.

• As part of our opinion on your 
financial statements, we will 
consider whether your financial 
statements reflect the financial 
reporting changes in the 2018/19 
CIPFA Code.

• You will see changes in the terminology we 
use in our reports that will align more closely 
with the ISAs

• We will ensure that our resources and testing 
are best directed to address your risks in an 
effective way.

22



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19 5

Significant risks identified
Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, 
the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The revenue cycle includes 
fraudulent transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be 
misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue. This presumption can be 
rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement 
due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the 
nature of the revenue streams at the Council, we have 
determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue 
recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very 
limited

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, 
including Tewkesbury Borough Council, mean that all forms 
of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for 
Tewkesbury Borough Council.

Management over-ride of controls Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of 
management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. The Council faces 
external scrutiny of its spending, and this could potentially place management 
under undue pressure in terms of how they report performance. Management 
over-ride of controls is a risk requiring special audit consideration.

We will:

• gain an understanding of the accounting estimates, 
judgements

• applied and decisions made by management and consider 
their reasonableness

• obtain a full listing of journal entries, identify and test 
unusual journal entries for appropriateness

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting 
policies or significant unusual transactions.

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report in July 2019.

23



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19 6

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of Property, Plant 
and Equipment

The Council revalues its land and buildings each year to ensure that 
carrying value is not materially different from fair value. This 
represents a significant estimate by management in the financial 
statements. We identified the valuation of land and buildings 
revaluations as a risk requiring special audit consideration.

We will:

• review of management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of 
the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of 
their work

• consider the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management 
experts used

• discuss with the valuer the basis on which the valuation is carried out and 
challenge of the key assumptions where appropriate

• review and challenge the information used by the valuer to ensure it is 
robust and consistent with our understanding

• test revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly 
into the Council's asset register

• evaluate the assumptions made by management for those assets not 
revalued during the year and how management has satisfied themselves 
that these are not materially different to current value.

Valuation of pension
fund net liability

The Council's pension fund asset and liability as reflected in its 
balance sheet represent a significant estimate in the financial 
statements. We identified the valuation of the pension fund net 
liability as a risk requiring special audit consideration.

We will:

• Identify the controls put in place by management to ensure that the 
pension fund liability is not materially misstated. We will also assess 
whether these controls were implemented as expected and whether they 
are sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement

• Evaluate the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who 
carried out your pension fund valuation. We will gain an understanding of 
the basis on which the valuation is carried out

• Undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial 
assumptions made

• Check the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and 
disclosures in notes to the financial statements with the actuarial report 
from your actuary.

Significant risks identified

24



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19 7

Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other
audit responsibilities, as follows:

• We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement to check that 
they are consistent with the financial statements on which we give an opinion and 
consistent with our knowledge of the Council.

• We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual 
Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued by CIPFA.

• We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government 
Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

• We consider our other duties under legislation and the Code, as and when required, 
including:

• Giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2018/19 
financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in 
relation to the 2018/19 financial statements;

• issue of a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the 
Authority under section 24 of the Act, copied to the Secretary of State.

• Application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary 
to law under Section 28 or for a judicial review under Section 31 of the Act; 
or

• Issuing an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Act.

• We certify completion of our audit.

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material 
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each 
material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material 
balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will 
not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the 
appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is 
a material uncertainty about the Council's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA 
(UK) 570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption 
and evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements. 

PSAA Contract Monitoring

Tewkesbury Borough Council opted into the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) 
Appointing Person scheme which starts in 2018/19. PSAA appointed Grant Thornton as 
auditors. PSAA is responsible under the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 
2015 for monitoring compliance with the contract and is committed to ensuring good 
quality audit services are provided by its suppliers. Details of PSAA’s audit quality 
monitoring arrangements are available from its website, www.psaa.co.uk.

Our contract with PSAA contains a method statement which sets out the firm’s 
commitment to deliver quality audit services, our audit approach and what clients can 
expect from us. We have set out commitment as set out in appendix B to deliver a high 
quality audit service in the attached presentation. We hope this is helpful. It will also be a 
benchmark for you to provide feedback on our performance to PSAA via its survey in 
Autumn 2019.

25



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19 8

Materiality

The concept of materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements 
and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to 
disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and 
applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if 
they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes

We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross 
expenditure of the Council for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same 
benchmark. Materiality at the planning stage of our audit is £750k (PY £739k), which 
equates to approx. 2% of your prior year gross expenditure for the year. We design our 
procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision. 

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we 
become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a 
different determination of planning materiality.

Matters we will report to the Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to 
our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit 
Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are 
identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with those charged 
with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements 
other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 
(UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken 
individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative 
criteria.  We propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be 
clearly trivial if it is less than £37k (PY £37k). 

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of 
the audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the 
Audit Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Prior year gross expenditure

£37.267m (PY: £36.973m) Materiality

Prior year gross expenditure

Materiality

£750k

Authority financial 
statements materiality:

(PY: £739)

£37k

Misstatements reported 
to the Audit Committee

(PY: £37k)

26



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19 9

Value for Money arrangements

Background to our VFM approach

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work in November 2017. The
guidance states that for Local Government bodies, auditors are required to give a
conclusion on whether the Authority has proper arrangements in place to secure value for
money.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Significant VFM risks

Those risks requiring audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that 
proper arrangements are not in place at the Authority to deliver value for money.

Medium Term Financial Strategy

Our 2017-18 VFM conclusion highlighted that the Council must ensure it 
develops a robust savings plan in order to deliver its annual budgets with 
sufficient capacity to manage its emerging cost pressures over the duration of 
its Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). The ongoing challenge of 
increasing service costs, as well as the reliance on the continuation of the 
New Homes Bonus and anticipated use of reserves enforces the need to 
identify additional sources of income in order to secure its financial 
sustainability for the future.

We will review the Council 's arrangements to establish how it is identifying,
managing and monitoring these financial risks. We will review the robustness
of the Council's financial plans and its key assumptions supporting the
development of its MTFP and savings plans.

We will aim to understand the extent to which the Council is seeking to identify
further income generation opportunities and alternative solutions to mitigate
the risk of future cuts in resources and government funding.

Informed 
decision 
making

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

Working 
with partners 
& other third 

parties

Value for 
Money 

arrangements 
criteria

27



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19 10

Audit logistics, team & fees

Audit fees

The planned audit fees are no less than £34,589 (PY: £44,921) for the financial statements 
audit and £7,795 for grant certification. Our fees for grant certification cover only the 
housing benefit subsidy certification. In setting your fee, we have assumed that the scope 
of the audit, and the Council and its activities, do not significantly change.

Our requirements

To ensure the audit is delivered on time and to avoid any additional fees, we have detailed 
our expectations and requirements in the following section ‘Early Close’. If the 
requirements detailed overleaf are not met, we reserve the right to postpone our audit visit 
and charge fees to reimburse us for any additional costs incurred.

Julie Masci, Engagement Lead

Julie leads our relationship with you and takes overall responsibility 
for the delivery of a high quality audit, meeting the highest 
professional standards and adding value to the Council.

Grace Hawkins, Audit Manager

Grace plans, manages and leads the delivery of the audit, is your 
key point of contact for your finance team and is your first point of 
contact for discussing any issues.

Tony Era, Audit Incharge

Tony’s role is to assist in planning, managing and delivering the 
audit fieldwork, ensuring the audit is delivered effectively, efficiently 
and supervises and co-ordinates the on-site audit team.

Planning and
risk assessment 

Interim audit
February 2019

Year end audit
June/July 2019

Audit
committee
March 2019

Audit
committee
May 2019

Audit
committee
July 2019

Audit
committee

September 2019

Audit 
Findings 
Report

Audit 
opinion

Audit 
Plan

Interim 
Progress 

Report

Annual 
Audit 
Letter

28



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19 11

Early close

Meeting the 31 July audit timeframe

In the prior year, the statutory date for publication of audited local government 
accounts was brought forward to 31 July, across the whole sector. This was a 
significant challenge for local authorities and auditors alike. For authorities, the time 
available to prepare the accounts was curtailed, while, as auditors we had a shorter 
period to complete our work and faced an even more significant peak in our workload 
than previously.

We have carefully planned how we can make the best use of the resources available 
to us during the final accounts period. As well as increasing the overall level of 
resources available to deliver audits, we have focused on:

• bringing forward as much work as possible to interim audits

• starting work on final accounts audits as early as possible, by agreeing which 
authorities will have accounts prepared significantly before the end of May

• seeking further efficiencies in the way we carry out our audits

• working with you to agree detailed plans to make the audits run smoothly, 
including early agreement of audit dates, working paper and data requirements 
and early discussions on potentially contentious items.

We are satisfied that, if all these plans are implemented, we will be able to complete 
your audit and those of our other local government clients in sufficient time to meet 
the earlier deadline. 

Client responsibilities

Where individual clients do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that this 
does not impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, thereby 
disadvantaging other clients. We will therefore conduct audits in line with the timetable set out 
in audit plans (as detailed on page 10). Where the elapsed time to complete an audit exceeds 
that agreed due to a client not meetings its obligations we will not be able to maintain a team 
on site. Similarly, where additional resources are needed to complete the audit due to a client 
not meeting their obligations we are not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit by the 
statutory deadline. Such audits are unlikely to be re-started until very close to, or after the 
statutory deadline. In addition, it is highly likely that these audits will incur additional audit fees.

Our requirements 

To minimise the risk of a delayed audit or additional audit fees being incurred, you need to 
ensure that you:

• produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed with us, 
including all notes, the narrative report and the Annual Governance Statement

• ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in 
accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with you

• ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are 
reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples

• ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise agreed) 
the planned period of the audit

• respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

In return, we will ensure that:

• the audit runs smoothly with the minimum disruption to your staff

• you are kept informed of progress through the use of an issues tracker and weekly 
meetings during the audit

• we are available to discuss issues with you prior to and during your preparation of the 
financial statements. 

29



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19 12

Independence & non-audit services
Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm 
or covered persons relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us.  We will also discuss with you if we make 
additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters. 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 
statements. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered 
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit 
Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 which set out supplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies. 

Other services provided by Grant Thornton

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Authority. The following other services were identified.

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are 
consistent with the council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by 
Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees. 

Service

Baseline

£ Threats Safeguards

Audit related

Housing Benefit 
Certification

£7,795 Self-Interest (because 
this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the 
baseline fee for this work is £7,795 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £34,589 and in particular 
relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee based on a prescribed level of 
testing and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an 
acceptable level.

30



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19

Appendices

A. Audit Approach

B. External Audit Commitment 

31



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19 14

Appendix A - Audit approach

Use of audit, data interrogation and analytics software

IDEA

• We use one of the world's 
leading data interrogation software tools, called 
'IDEA' which integrates the latest data analytics 
techniques into our audit approach

• We have used IDEA since its inception in the 
1980's and we were part of the original 
development team. We still have heavy 
involvement in both its development and delivery 
which is further enforced through our chairmanship 
of the UK IDEA User Group

• In addition to IDEA, we also other tools like ACL 
and Microsoft SQL server

• Analysing large volumes of data very quickly and 
easily enables us to identify exceptions which 
potentially highlight business controls that are not 
operating effectively

Appian

Business process management

• Clear timeline for account review:

 disclosure dealing

 analytical review

• Simple version control

• Allow content team to identify potential risk areas 
for auditors to focus on

S
ys

te
m

 (
7

3
m

 r
e

co
rd

s)

Inflo

Cloud based software which uses data analytics to 
identify trends and high risk transactions, generating 
insights to focus audit work and share with clients.

LEAP

Audit software

• A globally developed ISA-aligned methodology and 
software tool that aims to re-engineer our audit 
approach to fundamentally improve quality and 
efficiency

• LEAP empowers our engagement teams to deliver 
even higher quality audits, enables our teams to 
perform cost effective audits which are scalable to 
any client, enhances the work experience for our 
people and develops further insights into our 
clients’ businesses

• A cloud-based industry-leading audit tool developed 
in partnership with Microsoft

32



Our connections
 We are well connected to MHCLG, the 

NAO and key local government networks
 We work with CIPFA, Think Tanks and 

legal firms to develop workshops and good 
practice

 We have a strong presence across all parts 
of local government including blue light 
services

 We provide thought leadership, seminars 
and training to support our clients and to 
provide solutions

Our people
 We have over 25 engagement leads 

accredited by ICAEW, and over 
250 public sector specialists

 We provide technical and personal 
development training

 We employ over 80 Public Sector trainee 
accountants

The Local Government economy 

Local authorities face unprecedented challenges including:

- Financial Sustainability – addressing funding gaps and balancing needs against resources

- Service Sustainability –funding gaps and pressure on services

- Transformation – new models of delivery, greater emphasis on partnerships, more focus on 
economic development

- Technology – cyber security and risk management

At a wider level, the political environment remains complex:

- The government continues its negotiation with the EU over Brexit, and future arrangements 
remain uncertain.

- We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial resources as part 
of our work in reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

- We will keep you informed of changes to the financial  reporting requirements for 2018/19 
through on-going discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops.

New 
opportunities 
and challenges 
for your 
community

Our quality
 Our audit approach complies with the 

NAO's Code of Audit Practice, and 
International Standards on Auditing

 We are fully compliant with ethical 
standards

 Your audit team has passed all quality 
inspections including QAD and AQRT

Grant Thornton in Local 
Government

 We work closely with our clients to ensure that we understand their financial challenges, 
performance and future strategy.

 We deliver robust, pragmatic and timely financial statements and Value for Money audits

 We have an open, two way dialogue with clients that support improvements in arrangements 
and the audit process

 Feedback meetings tell us that our clients are pleased with the service we deliver. We are not 
complacent and will continue to improve further

 Our locally based, experienced teams have a commitment to both our clients and the wider 
public sector

 We are a Firm that specialises in Local Government, Health and Social Care, and Cross Sector 
working, with over 25 Key Audit Partners, the most public sector specialist Engagement Leads 
of any firm

 We have strong relationships with CIPFA, SOLACE, the Society of Treasurers, the Association 
of Directors of Adult Social Care and others. 

 We propose a realistic fee, based on known local circumstances and requirements.

Our relationship 
with our 
clients– why are 
we best placed?

 Early advice on technical accounting  issues, providing certainty of accounting treatments, future 
financial planning implications and resulting in draft statements that are 'right first time’

 Knowledge and expertise in all matters local government, including local objections and 
challenge, where we have an unrivalled depth of expertise. 

 Early engagement on issues, especially on ADMs, restructuring, partnership working, inter 
authority agreements, governance and financial reporting

 Robust but pragmatic challenge – seeking early liaison on issues, and having the difficult 
conversations early to ensure a 'no surprises' approach – always doing the right thing

 Providing regional training and networking opportunities for your teams on technical accounting 
issues and developments and changes to Annual Reporting requirements

 An efficient audit approach, providing  tangible benefits, such as releasing finance staff earlier 
and prompt resolution of issues.

Delivering real 
value through:

Our client base 
and delivery
 We are the largest supplier of external audit 

services to local government
 We audit over 150 local government clients
 We signed 95% of  our local government 

opinions in 2017/18 by 31 July
 In our latest independent client service 

review, we consistently score 9/10 or 
above. Clients value our strong interaction, 
our local knowledge and wealth of 
expertise.

Our technical 
support
 We have specialist leads for Public Sector 

Audit quality and technical
 We provide national technical guidance on 

emerging auditing, financial reporting and 
ethical areas

 Specialist audit software is used to deliver 
maximum efficiencies

“I have found Grant Thornton to be very 
impressive…..they  bring a real understanding of the 
area. Their insights and support are excellent. They 
are responsive, pragmatic and, through their 
relationship and the quality of their work, support us 
in moving forward through increasingly challenging 
times. I wouldn't hesitate to work with them."

Director of Finance, County Council 

Our commitment to our local government 
clients

• Senior level investment
• Local presence enhancing our 

responsiveness, agility and flexibility.
• High quality audit delivery
• Collaborative working across the public 

sector
• Wider connections across the public sector 

economy, including with health and other 
local government bodies

• Investment in Health and Wellbeing, Social 
Value and the Vibrant Economy 

• Sharing of best practice and our thought 
leadership.

• Invitations to training events locally and 
regionally – bespoke training for emerging 
issues

• Further investment in data analytics and 
informatics to keep our knowledge of the 
areas up to date and to assist in designing a 
fully tailored audit approach

Appendix B - Local Government audits 2018/19 and beyond

Grant Thornton's External Audit commitment

33



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Tewkesbury Borough Council   |  2018/19

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 
firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

34



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

  

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 28 March 2019 

Subject: Statement of Accounting Policies  

Report of: Head of Finance and Asset Management 

Corporate Lead: Deputy Chief Executive 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Finance and Asset Management 

Number of Appendices: 1 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

This report sets out the main changes in accounting policies under the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 supported by International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act.  
These policies outline the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied 
when preparing and presenting the financial statements. 

Recommendation: 

To APPROVE the accounting policies to be used during in the preparation of the 
2018/19 financial statements. 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

The accounting policies govern the accounting treatment used to close the final accounts 
which this Committee is asked to approve in July after the audit has been completed. The 
Council must disclose the accounting policies it has applied to all material balances and 
transactions. 

 
 

Resource Implications: 

There are no direct financial implications arising from the approval of accounting policies, 
although if Members should not approve them it may impact on the final outturn. 

Legal Implications: 

There are no direct legal implications arising from the approval of accounting policies and 
critical judgements; however, Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2003 enables the 
Secretary of State to make regulations requiring accounting practices, including the Statement 
of Accounts, to be undertaken in accordance with proper accounting practices (i.e. the current 
Code of Practice).  

 
 
 
 

35

Agenda Item 8



Risk Management Implications: 

There is a risk of the accounts being qualified if the proper accounting practices are not 
followed, or if they deviate substantially from the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting.  

Performance Management Follow-up: 

Grant Thornton will audit this as part of the year-end audit and will issue an opinion in July 
2019. 

Environmental Implications:  

None. 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 The Council is required to produce an annual statement of accounts prepared in 
accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2018/19.   

1.2 As part of this statement it has to disclose the accounting policies applied to material 
transactions and balances (materiality is provisionally set at £750,000).  There is little 
discretion to the Council as the proper accounting practices, that all local authorities 
follow, are set down in the Code. 

2.0 MAIN CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY 

2.1 The full list of accounting policies can be found as Appendix A with the main changes 
highlighted in yellow. 

2.2 There have been substantial changes to the 2018/19 CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting which came into effect for financial years beginning 1 April 2018. 
These changes are in the areas of Revenue Recognition and Financial Instruments due 
to the adoption, by the Code, of International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 15 - 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments.  

2.3 The adoption of these new IFRS in the 2018/19 Code does constitute a change in 
accounting policy which would normally require restatement of the previous year’s 
accounts, but the Code contains provisions for transitional arrangements which only 
require adjustments to 1 April 2018 opening balances rather than full prior-year 
restatement. 

2.4 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (1.2) 

 

 

The first newly adopted standard is IFRS 15 (Revenue from Contracts with Customers).  
This standard requires authorities to recognise only the revenue it expects to receive and 
only when all outstanding performance obligations associated with the income has been 
satisfied. In reality it is not expected that this will change when and how income is 
recognised; however, it does come with increased disclosures in the Financial 
Statements. 

 

 

36



2.5 Financial Instruments (1.6) 

 The change likely to have the most impact on the Council is the introduction of IFRS 9 
Financial Instruments.  This brings in a new way to classify our financial instruments that 
looks at the cash flows of an instrument and is more principles based than the previous 
rules-based classification.  The other main change in IFRS 9 is a move to a forward 
looking expected credit loss model which anticipates any future losses and accounts for 
them immediately.  Both are likely to have a financial impact on our accounts; however, 
in December 2018 the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government issued a 
statutory override for pooled funds that lasts five years to avoid the changes impacting on 
the General Fund. 

2.6 Community Infrastructure Levy (1.7) 

 The Council adopted the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in October 2018 with 
charging beginning from 1 January 2019 so a policy was needed to outline the proposed 
accounting treatment.  Even though developers can pay in instalments, the full CIL 
liability is due on the commencement of the development and so, for accounting 
purposes, the full amount should be shown in the accounts at that date. 

3.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

3.1 None. 

4.0 CONSULTATION  

4.1 None.  

5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

5.1 None. 

6.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

6.1  Local Government Act 2003 and Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

7.1 None. 

8.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

8.1 None. 

9.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

9.1 None. 

 

 

 

 

 

37



10.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

10.1 None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None 
 
Contact Officer:  Finance Manager 
 01684 272006 emma.harley@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
   
Appendices:  Appendix A – Statement of Accounting Policies 
  
 

38

mailto:emma.harley@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Appendix A -  Accounting Policies 

1.1 General Principles

The financial statements summarises the council’s transactions for the 2018/2019 financial year and its 
position at the year-end of 31 March 2019.  The council is required to prepare annual financial statements by 
the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which those Regulations require to be prepared in 
accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices under Section 21 of the 2003 Act primarily 
comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/2019 supported by 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under section 12 of the 
Finance Act 2003.

The accounting convention adopted in the financial statements is principally historical cost, modified by the 
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

The council prepares its financial statements on the basis that it remains a going concern; that assumes that 
the functions of the council will continue in operational existence.

1.2 Accruals of Expenditure and Income

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or 
creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance 
of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

1.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice 
of not more than 24 hours.

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that can be 'called' within 30 days or less from the date of 
acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable 
on demand and form an integral part of the council’s cash management.

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. 
In particular:
• Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of goods, is recognised 
when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in accordance with the performance 
obligations in the contract.
• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the date 
supplies are received and their consumption; they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as 
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income and 
expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash 
flows fixed or determined by the contract.

Page 1
39



Benefits Payable During Employment

Termination Benefits

Post Employment Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include such 
benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits 
(e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which 
employees render service to the council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of 
leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry 
forward into the next financial year (where material). The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates 
applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The 
accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which 
the holiday absence occurs.

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the council to terminate an officer’s 
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in 
exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service or, where 
applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the 
earlier of when the council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the council recognises 
costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General 
Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or pensioner in the 
year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and 
credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Employees of the council are members of the Local Government Pensions Scheme administered by 
Gloucestershire County council.

The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as 
employees worked for the council.

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

1.4 Employee Benefits

• The liabilities of the Gloucestershire County council pension fund attributable to the council are included in 
the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future 
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on 
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings for 
current employees.

• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, (see relevant note for further details)
• The assets of the Gloucestershire County council pension fund attributable to the council are included in the 
Balance Sheet at their bid value as required by IAS 19.

Page 2
40



Post Employment Benefits (continued)

- Service cost comprising

Post Employment Benefits (continued)

- Remeasurements comprising:

• net interest on the net defined benefit liability, i.e. net interest expense for the council – the change during the 
period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is 
calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 
period to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in the 
net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

• the return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability – 
charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

• actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not 
coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their 
assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

• contributions paid to the Gloucestershire County council pension fund – cash paid as employer’s 
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the 
amount payable by the council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount 
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this 
means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and 
credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and 
pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the 
Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account 
for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

• current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year – allocated in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked

• past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to years 
of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs

The council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early 
retirements.  However, the council has a policy not to allow this.

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into several components:

Page 3
41



• amortised cost
• fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and

1.6 Financial Instruments

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the council becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised 
cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, 
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was 
originally recognised.

For the borrowings that the council has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

Financial Assets

1.5 Events After the Reporting Period

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between 
the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types 
of events can be identified:

• Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the  financial 
statements are adjusted to reflect such events; and

• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the  financial statements are not 
adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is 
made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the financial statements.

Financial assets are classified based on the business model for holding them and the characteristics of their 
cashflows. The three main classes of financial assets are measured at:

• fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

The business model of the authority is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows for treasury 
management purposes only.  Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those 
whose contractual payments are not solely payment of interest and principal and interest (i.e. where it isn't a 
basic debt instrument).

Page 4
42



• �� Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.

• Instruments with quoted market prices – the market price
• Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis
• Equity shares with no quoted market prices – independent appraisal of company valuations.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three levels:

• �� Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the council can access 
at the measurement date.

• �� Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset, 
either directly or indirectly.

The authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost (or where 
relevant FVOCI), either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease 
receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the 
authority.

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take place 
because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses. 
Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a 
lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 
12-month expected losses.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair 
value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following principles:

Expected Credit Loss Model

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. 
They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest 
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the authority, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES 
is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Page 5
43



• the grants or contributions will be received.

1.7 Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and 
donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that:

• the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations 
that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the 
grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or 
service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the 
Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant 
service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-
ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The policy of this Council is to recognise all grants straight away in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account unless there are conditions attached to the grant that require repayment and the Council 
believes this is more than likely to occur based on previous experience.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Page 6
44



Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets 

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation, 
impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund 
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than 
£10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

1.9 Interests in Companies and Other Entities

The council does not have any material interests in companies and other entities that have the nature of 
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and would require it to prepare group accounts. In the council’s own 
single-entity accounts, the interests in companies and other entities are recorded as financial assets at cost, 
less any provision for losses.

1.10 Inventories and Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of 
inventories is assigned using the FIFO (first in, first out) costing formula.

Government Grants and Contributions (continued)
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to 
be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been 
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

1.8 Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the Council as 
a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits 
or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically feasible and 
is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the council will be able to generate 
future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is 
capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred 
during the development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily intended to 

Community Infrastructure Levy
The authority has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) from 1st January 2019. The levy will 
be charged on new builds (chargeable developments for the authority) with appropriate planning consent. The 
council charges for and collects the levy, which is a planning charge. The income from the levy will be used to 
fund a number of infrastructure projects (these include transport, flood defences and schools) to support the 
development of the area in line with our Regulation 123 list that is published on our website.

CIL is received without outstanding conditions; it is therefore recognised at the commencement date of the 
chargeable development in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in accordance with the 
accounting policy for government grants and contributions set out above. CIL charges will be largely used to 
fund capital expenditure. However, 5% of these charges may be used to fund revenue administrative costs of 
CIL.

Page 7
45



Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the financial year.

1.11 Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The 
definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods 
or is held for sale.

Page 8
46



Investment property (continued)

The council as Lessee

Finance Leases

Lease payments are apportioned between:

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied 
generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the 
asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the council at the end of the 
lease period).

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other 
leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for 
classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for 
payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 
specific assets.

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the 
lessor. Initial direct costs of the council are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry 
into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the 
periods in which they are incurred.

• A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write down the 
lease liability, and

• A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.  As a non-financial asset, investment properties are measured at highest and best use. 
Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains 
and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on 
disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal 
gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. 
The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the 
Capital Receipts Reserve.

1.12 Leases

Page 9
47



The council as Lessor (continued)

Operating Leases

The council as Lessor

Finance Leases

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not permitted by 
statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where a 
premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by 
the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred 
Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are received, the 
element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At this point, 
the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore appropriated to the 
Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses 
arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the 
deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and 
impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of 
an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two.

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as 
an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made 
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there 
is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).

Where the council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the relevant asset is 
written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the 
asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to 
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term 
debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.

• A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease debtor (together 
with any premiums received), and

• Finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Page 10
48



Operating Leases (continued)

1.13 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Disposals

Disposals

• The sale must be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must be committed to a plan to sell 
the asset and an active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated;

• The asset must be actively marketed for a sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to the current value;

• The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year of the date of 
classification and action required to complete the plan should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes 
to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-
current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale; 
adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been 
classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet 
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of 
the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve 
are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Where the council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is 
retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the 
pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease or a rent free period). 
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale 
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an asset held for sale. The asset is 
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less 
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the 
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair 
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on 
Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

To be classed as 'held for sale' the following criteria must be met:

• The asset is available for immediate sale in the present condition subject to terms that are usual and 
customary for such assets;

Page 11
49



Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Disposals (continued)

1.14 Overheads and Support Services

 
1.15 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

1.16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for 
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial 
year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an 
accruals basis, provided that it yields benefits to the council and the services that it provides are for more than 
one financial year. Expenditure that secures but does not extend the previously assessed standards of 
performance of asset (e.g. repairs and maintenance) is charged to revenue as it is incurred.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion of 
receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% for land and other assets, net of statutory 
deductions and allowances) is payable to the Government. The balance of receipts is required to be credited to 
the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the 
council's underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the 
Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital 
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The costs of overheads and support services are not shown within the service segments in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Account as we do not report this in our management reports throughout the year. 
Therefore the full cost principles detailed in the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2018/2019 
(Se RCOP) are no longer used within the financial statements.

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. 
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected 
by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change 
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on 
the council's financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively 
(unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the 
new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances 
and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Page 12
50



Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the 
asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.

Depreciated historic 
cost

• Represents the cost of bringing the asset into operational use less an adjustment for 
depreciation. Used where a reliable estimate of its current fair value can not be made;
• Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction.

Where the council recognises non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), 
depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their 
carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end.  The council has a policy to 
revalue all its assets at year end to ensure their current value is reflected in the financial statements.  
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. 
(Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they 
arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.)

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount 
of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains);

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

Current Value 
(Existing Use)

• Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist 
nature of an asset, it is an estimate of the amount that would be paid for the asset in its 
existing use;
• Includes assets held such as car parks, properties and offices.

Depreciated 
Replacement Cost

• Represents the current cost of replacing an asset with its modern equivalent less 
deductions for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence
• Includes assets held such as cemetery and theatre.

Market Value • Items which are not held primarily for delivery of council services and which are 
valued at the price that would be received to sell an asset in on the open market;
• Includes investment properties.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising all expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset 
into working condition at its current location for its intended use,  including the purchase price and any 
dismantling and removal costs.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does 
not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the council). In the latter 
case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the 
asset given up by the council.

Page 13
51



Depreciation

• Dwellings and other buildings

• Infrastructure - over the UEL of the individual assets as estimated by the valuer or Project
Officer.
- These assets have an estimated UEL of between 30 - 60 years

• Specialist equipment - depreciated over the useful economic life (UEL) of the asset as estimated
by a suitably qualified person.
- solar panels are being depreciated over 25 years

Revaluation gains are also depreciated. An amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation 
charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost, being 
transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the
asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for 
depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their 
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite 
useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. 
assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the following time periods:
- the useful economic life (UEL) of the property as estimated by the valuer;

• Vehicles, plant, furniture and
equipment

- 5 to 7 years, which is deemed an reasonable estimation of the UEL of
these types of assets;

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal 
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

The council operates a deminimis for capital purposes of £10,000 (including groups of assets) except where 
a specific government grant has been received or it is an enhancement of an existing asset.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is 
recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:
• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount
of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

Page 14
52



Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Componentisation

1.17 Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

1.18 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year. Where it becomes less than probable 
that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the 
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

• Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in 
the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

• Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service.
The council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or 
amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its 
overall borrowing requirement equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the 
council in accordance with statutory guidance (England and Wales). Depreciation, revaluation and impairment 
losses and amortisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance (MRP), by way 
of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for 
the difference between the two.

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the council a legal or constructive obligation 
that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the council may be involved in a court 
case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year that the council becomes aware of the obligation. They are measured at the 
best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account 
relevant risks and uncertainties.

The council has taken the view that 'significant' means:
• The cost of the component is more than 25% of the cost of the asset as a whole; and
• The cost of the component is more than £500,000.

However, if depreciating the single asset as opposed to the separate components will not result in a material 
misstatement of either depreciation charges or the carrying amount of the asset then componentisation will not 
be required.

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of 
holding non-current assets during the year:

• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Page 15
53



Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (continued)

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent Assets

1.19 Reserves

1.20 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

1.21 VAT

The council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. 
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service 
revenue account in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  The reserve is then appropriated back into the General 
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for 
the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets such as, financial 
instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the council.

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not result 
in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the council has determined to meet the 
cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the 
amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another party 
(e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain 
that reimbursement will be received if the council settles the obligation.

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible obligation whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be 
made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the financial 
statements.

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible asset whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the financial statements 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Page 16
54



1.22 Heritage Assets

The council does not, normally, purchase heritage assets 

1.23 Council tax and Non-Domestic rates (NDR)

The transactions contained within the Collection Fund are prescribed by legislation and we (as a billing 
authority) have no discretion to deviate from this at all.

Where heritage assets have been donated they are initially carried at cost. Where there is not readily 
identifiable evidence of cost, the council will ask an expert (in that field) to provide an estimate of the value of 
those assets. Where a reliable estimate of value cannot be made (due to unique nature of heritage assets) the 
council's policy is to not to disclose a value in the Balance Sheet but to disclose a note in the financial 
statements to explain the assets held.

Subsequently to initial disclosure, the council uses insurance valuations of the assets as an estimation of the 
carrying value of these assets. Our Insurance schedule is updated annually and the officer responsible for the 
assets held assesses whether this valuation is adequate.

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment, e.g. where an 
item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any 
impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the council’s general policies on impairment.

The council does not, normally, dispose of heritage assets but if the event occurred the proceeds would be 
accounted for in line with the general provisions relating to the disposal of property, plant and equipment.  
Disposal proceeds are disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statements and accounted for in 
accordance with statutory accounting requirements relating to capital expenditure and capital receipts.

Billing authorities like Tewkesbury Borough council act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic 
rates (NDR) on behalf of the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting 
council tax and NDR for themselves.  Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing 
authorities, major preceptors and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the 
amount of council tax and NDR collected could be more or less than predicted.

The council tax and business rates (NNDR) income recognised in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account is the council's share of accrued council tax and business rates recognised in the 
Collection Fund.

Heritage assets are held by the council for the objective of contributing to knowledge and culture.  The 
museum exhibits and historical sites are to provide historical understanding and appreciation of the local area 
and the civic regalia is held for historical and cultural appreciation of the Borough.  

Where Heritage Assets have been recognised in the Balance Sheet, the measurement basis (including the 
treatment of revaluation gains and losses) is in accordance with the council's accounting policies on property, 
plant and equipment. However, some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets, and 
are accounted for as follows.

Page 17
55



Council tax and Non-Domestic rates (NDR) (continued)
This means:
- the transactions included within the Collection Fund are limited to cash flows (as statute dictates) whereas the 
income is recognised on a full accruals basis in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure statement 
(including our share of the year's surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund whereas in reality this is distributed in 
the following year). 
- the year end surplus/deficit on the Collection Fund is based on estimates made in January.
The difference between the Collection Fund figures and those required in the financial statements are taken to 
the Collection Fund Adjustment Account through the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet includes the authority's share of the end of year balances in respect of council tax and 
NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and 
appeals.

Page 18
56



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 28 March 2019 

Subject: Annual Safeguarding Update 

Report of: Head of Community Services 

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Community 

Number of Appendices: One 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

This report provides the Committee with an update on how the Council is fulfilling its 
safeguarding responsibilities. 

This year there was no requirement to carry out a Section 11 self-assessment due to the 
changes to the Children’s Safeguarding Board procedures as set out in the body of the report. 

Appendix 1 is an update on the actions identified as part of an internal audit of Safeguarding. 

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the annual report giving assurance as to the level of the Council’s 
compliance with its safeguarding duty.  

Reasons for Recommendation: 

Tewkesbury Borough Council is committed to the principles of safeguarding and promoting the 
welfare of all children, young people and vulnerable adults.  Our employees and any 
contractors working on the Council's behalf are briefed and understand the definitions of 
children and vulnerable adults in the context of the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act and 
the legislative framework of measures to protect these groups from harm.  This report provides 
the Committee with the reassurance that safeguarding is being managed correctly by the 
Council. 

 
 

Resource Implications: 

None arising from this report. 

Legal Implications: 

None arising directly from this report; however, the Children Act 2004, the safeguarding 
Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 and the Care Act 2014 place duties on the Council to ensure its 
functions are discharged having regard to the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of 
children, young people and vulnerable adults. 

 
 

57

Agenda Item 9



 
 

Risk Management Implications: 

None arising directly from this report; however, the Council has a duty of care for the children, 
young people and vulnerable adults who take part in activities, or access services that it 
provides. The Council recognises that all children and young people have a right to be safe 
and to be protected from abuse and harm. By not complying with the recommendations made 
in the safeguarding audit, children, young people and vulnerable adults could be exposed to an 
increased risk of abuse and this in turn could damage the Council’s reputation. 

Performance Management Follow-up: 

The Safeguarding Policy will be reviewed in 2019 to ensure that it is still fit for purpose. 

Environmental Implications:  

None 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 Tewkesbury Borough Council recognises and accepts its responsibilities to ensure, as 
far as possible, that young people and vulnerable adults are protected from harm. 

1.2 Historically, district and borough councils were required to carry out a self-assessment in 
order to demonstrate their compliance with Section 11 of the Children’s Act 2004.  This 
has not been a requirement this year due to the changes in the working of the 
Gloucestershire Children’s Safeguarding Board which is currently in development as set 
out below. 

1.3 As part of ensuring that we are dealing with safeguarding appropriately, the internal audit 
team carried out a review of how the Council complies with this requirement.  Appendix 1 
to this report is an update on the activity that has been carried out with regard to the 
actions identified.  Members will note that the action plan is virtually complete. 

2.0 WORKING TOGETHER 

2.1 Children’s safeguarding is everyone’s responsibility and, historically, the County Council 
was the lead authority although there was a formal duty for the Police and the Clinical 
Commissioning Groups and other public authorities to cooperate. 

2.2 The Children Act 2004, as amended by the Children and Social Work Act 2017, 
strengthens this already important relationship by placing new duties on key agencies in 
a local area.  Specifically, the Police, Clinical Commissioning Groups and the local 
authority are under a duty to make arrangements to work together, and with other 
partners locally, to safeguard and promote the welfare of all children in their area. 

2.3 Locally, this has led to a review of the way that the Local Safeguarding Children Boards 
operates.  From 29 June 2018, local authorities must begin their transition from Local 
Safeguarding Children Boards to safeguarding partner and child death review 
partnerships. The transition must be completed by 29 September 2019.  New Section 11 
requirements will be incorporated into the review. 

 

 

58



3.0 TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL SAFEGUARDING POLICY 

3.1 Tewkesbury Borough Council has a Safeguarding Policy which it has committed to 
reviewing every year.  In light of the transition taking place at county level, a light touch 
review has taken place this year and the policy is currently still fit for purpose.  A further 
full review will incorporate any new arrangements in line with the new county-wide 
arrangements. 

3.2 Any new Section 11 requirements for the Council will also be incorporated into this policy 
review. 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 None 

5.0 CONSULTATION 

5.1 None 

6.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

6.1 Tewkesbury Borough Council Safeguarding Policy 

7.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES 

7.1  Safeguarding Children and Young People – July 2014 

Adult Safeguarding: Statement of Government Policy – May 2011. 

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

8.1 None 

9.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

9.1 None 

10.0 

 

IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

10.1 None 

 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None 
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Community Services 
 01684 272259 Peter.Tonge@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 - Internal Audit of Safeguarding – Action plan Update. 

59



Appendix 1 

SAFEGUARDING ACTION PLAN 
 

Recommendation / Action  Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date Status  Progress to Date  

The Council has a statutory 
responsibility and a duty of care, to 
cooperate and report issues 
relating to safeguarding to the 
appropriate authorities and partner 
agencies. 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

Sept 2017  Regular reports are now made to the 
safeguarding team at Gloucestershire County 
Council.  This is also now reported to 
Management Team on a quarterly basis. 

 

Safeguarding training needs to be 
made real for officers and a 
training scheme needs to be 
arranged for this to happen. 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

October 2017 

 

 New online safeguarding training is available for 
all staff. 

Basic awareness of safeguarding 
needs to be undertaken with 
volunteers. 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

March 2018 

 

 Periodic safeguarding awareness is carried out 
with volunteers. 

Elected Members need to 
understand their safeguarding 
responsibilities and appropriate 
training needs to be arranged and 
delivered. 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

March 2018 

 

 New online training is being made available to 
Councillors. 

It is recommended that the Council 
templates used in connection with 
decision making provide 
appropriate safeguarding prompts. 

 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

March 2018 

 

 This is under review by Democratic Services. 

60



Appendix 1 

Recommendation / Action  Responsible 
Officer 

Target Date Status  Progress to Date  

A review of ICT security policy to 
ensure confidentiality of data 
needs to be undertaken. 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

March 2018 

 

 Completed as part of General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR). 

To update the licensing application 
form to include safeguarding 
requirement and how to meet the 
requirement.  

Environmental 
Health Manager 

March 2018 

 

 Form has been amended and is available 
online. 

A process to check all 
new/renewal license applicants 
within six months to confirm they 
can demonstrate that they have 
received training should be 
implemented. 

Environmental 
Health Manager 

March 2018 

 

 Taxi drivers are now required to undertake 
safeguarding training and this is reflected in the 
new draft policy along with the sanctions for not 
completing. 

License suspension procedures 
should be developed to handle any 
non-compliance to safeguarding 
training. 

Environmental 
Health Manager 

March 2018 

 

 Procedure in place to check that drivers have 
received training within six months of being 
granted a licence. This requirement is now 
explicit on the application form. Drivers not 
conforming to this will have licence suspended / 
revoked.  

The Council’s website should be 
updated to provide adequate 
licensing information in respect to 
safeguarding. 

Environmental 
Health Manager 

March 2018 

 

 Website has been updated to reflect 
requirement of drivers to provide evidence of 
safeguarding training. 

 

 
 
 

61



Appendix 1 

STATUS KEY 
 
 

 Action is progressing well and on target to achieve completion date/within agreed budget (if applicable) etc. 

 Action has some issues or delays but is likely to achieve completion date/within agreed budget (if applicable) etc.  

 Significant risk to not achieving the action or there has been significant slippage in the timetable. 

 Action is complete. 

 Action not yet commenced. (may not yet be programmed for action) 

 62



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee  

Date of Meeting: 28 March 2019  

Subject: ‘Call-In’ of Outstanding Internal Audit Recommendations 

Report of: Head of Corporate Services 

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive  

Lead Member: Lead Member for Corporate Governance 

Number of Appendices: 1 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

Internal audit regularly follow-up the status of recommendations they have made with 
managers to determine the progress made regarding implementation. Each recommendation 
has as an agreed implementation date and is allocated to a responsible officer. Internal audit 
then report their findings to each Audit and Governance Committee as part of a standard 
monitoring report. Using a RAG (red, amber, green) status, recommendations are either 
reported as ‘red’ (not implemented’), ‘amber’ (partially implemented) or ‘green’ (implemented). 
At Audit Committee on 12 December 2018, Members of the Committee were concerned that a 
number of recommendations had not been implemented despite a revised implementation date 
being agreed. With regards to that specific monitoring report, it was resolved at Committee to 
‘call-in’ those recommendations where the implementation date had slipped at least twice.  
Audit Committee specifically requested that a responsible officer attend the next Committee 
meeting. Moving forward, where similar slippage occurs, a responsible officer must be in 
attendance at the Committee meeting to answer questions.  

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the progress made in relation to implementing specific internal audit 
recommendations that have been questioned at the previous Audit Committee meeting.    

Reasons for Recommendation: 

It was a resolution from the Audit Committee meeting on 12 December 2018 that a report be 
brought back to the next committee meeting ‘calling in’ those recommendations that had not 
been implemented despite revised implementation dates being agreed.  

 
 

Resource Implications: 

None arising directly from this report.   

Legal Implications: 

None arising directly from this report. 

 
 

63

Agenda Item 10



 

Risk Management Implications: 

If internal audit recommendations are not implemented, there is a risk that the Council’s 
internal control environment is not sufficiently robust, potentially resulting in one or more of the 
following: financial loss, fraud, not achieving value for money, reputational risk etc. 

Performance Management Follow-up: 

All internal audit recommendations are subject to follow-up work by internal audit to gain 
assurance they have been implemented. The result of this follow-up work is reported to Audit 
and Governance Committee.  

Environmental Implications:  

None.  

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 Internal audit regularly follow-up the status of recommendations they have made with 
managers to determine the progress made regarding implementation. Each 
recommendation has as an agreed implementation date and is allocated to a 
responsible officer. Internal audit then report their findings to Audit and Governance 
Committee as part of a standard monitoring report. Using a RAG (red, amber, green) 
status, recommendations are either reported as ‘red’ (not implemented’), ‘amber’ 
(partially implemented) or ‘green’ (implemented). 

1.2 At Audit Committee on 12 December 2018, Members of the Committee were concerned 
that a number of recommendations had not been implemented despite a revised 
implementation date being agreed. With regards to that specific monitoring report, it 
was resolved at Committee to ‘call-in’ those recommendations where the 
implementation date had slipped at least twice. Audit Committee specifically requested 
that a responsible officer attend the next Committee meeting. Moving forward, where 
similar slippage occurs, a responsible officer must be in attendance at the Committee 
meeting to answer questions. 

2.0 SPECIFIC AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS OUTSTANDING 

2.1 The internal audit monitoring report presented at Audit Committee on 12 December 
2018 included details of recommendations that had been followed-up during the period. 
The report confirmed that, of the 15 recommendations followed-up, six had been 
implemented, three partially implemented and six had yet to be implemented. Of the 
nine recommendations where full implementation had yet to be achieved, five of these 
had seen implementation dates slip on more than two occasions. The five 
recommendations relate to the following activities: 

 Homelessness – procurement of storing goods 

 Winchcombe Tourist Information Centre – lease agreement 

 Recycling – data protocol 

 Business Continuity – update of business continuity plan 

 Disabled Facilities Grant monitoring 

 

64



2.2 Greater detail of the individual recommendations can be found in Appendix 1 which 
includes previously agreed implementation dates, categorisation of the 
recommendation, responsible officer and a further update on progress made regarding 
implementation. This confirms three of the five recommendations have now been 
implemented. Adopting the Committee’s ‘two strikes and out’ approach, a responsible 
officer is required to attend the Committee meeting to answer any questions arising on 
the time taken for implementation, or why the recommendation remains outstanding. 

3.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

3.1 None. 

4.0 CONSULTATION  

4.1 None. 

5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

5.1 None.  

6.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

6.1  None.  

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

7.1 None.  

8.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

8.1 None. 

9.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

9.1 Prompt implementation of internal audit recommendations will improve the Council’s 
internal control environmental. Particular controls will contribute to delivering value for 
money.  

10.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

10 .1 None.  

 
 
 

Background Papers: None  
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Corporate Services  
                                       01684 272002 Graeme.Simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Update on outstanding recommendations reported to 

Audit Committee on 12 December 2018 where implementation dates 
had slipped at least twice.                                         

                                         

65



Appendix 1 - CALL IN REPORT - OUTSTANDING AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW-UP DETAILS  

 
KEY                 

Recommendation status:  Priority:       

  Recommendation reviewed and 
found not to be implemented.  

 

H (high) 

A fundamental weakness in the system that puts the Authority at risk. This might include non-compliance with legislation or council policy, or may result in 
major risk of loss or damage to council assets, information or reputation. Requires action as a matter of urgency; ideally to be addressed within a 3-6 
month timeframe wherever possible or within an extended time frame as agreed with Internal Audit if the recommendation requires extensive resources or 
time. 

  Recommendation reviewed and 
found to be partially implemented. 

 
M 
(medium) 

Observations refer mainly to issues that have an important effect on the system of internal control but do not require immediate action. Legislation or policy 
are unlikely to be breached as a consequence of these issues, although could cause limited loss of assets, information or adverse publicity or 
embarrassment. Internal audit suggest improvement to system design to minimise risk and/or improve efficiency of service. To ideally be resolved within a 
6-9 month timescale.  

  Recommendation reviewed and 
found to be implemented 

  
L (low) 

Observations refer to issues that would if corrected, improve internal control in general and ensure good practice, but are not vital to the overall system of 
internal control. A desirable improvement to the system, to be introduced within a 9-12 month period. 

 

AUDIT RECOMMENDATION 
DETAILS 

PRIORITY RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 

IMPLEMEN-
TATION 
DATE 

RECOMMEN-
DATION 
STATUS 

UPDATE FOR AUDIT & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE 28 MARCH 2019 

NEW 
RECOMMEN-
DATION 
STATUS 

NEW 
IMPLEMEN-
TATON 
DATE  

TARGET 
FOLLOW 
UP DATE 

Homeless 
2014-15 

To demonstrate best 
value, a procurement 
exercise in relation to the 
storage of personal 
belongings for 
homelessness persons 
should be undertaken 

L Housing 
Services 
Manager 

Apr-16.                         
Dec-17.                 
Sept-18.                 
Mar-19.                  

  Ongoing discussions in respect of the service 
specification identified that there were elements of the 
service which required specialised service delivery and 
this limited procurement possibilities.  These included 
the need for contractors to have DBS checks for 
handling collection of belongings of vulnerable 
individuals, the actual disposal of belongings not 
required on collection and also after the statutory 
period to remove belongings from storage had lapsed.  
A waiver in favour of the current service provider has 
now been signed by the budget holder and is currently 
with One Legal for counter signature.  

  n/a n/a 

TIC 2016-
17 

The agreement between 
TBC and Winchcombe 
Town Trust should be 
located and updated to 
outline the conditions and 
rental fee for the lease of 
the room used for 
Winchcombe TIC. 

L TIC Manager 
and Economic 
and Community 
Development 
Manager 

Aug-17.                      
Sep-18.                   
Feb-19. 

  A meeting between the Economic and Community 
Development Manager and the Winchcombe Trust has 
been programmed for April 2019.  In view of the 
voluntary nature of the trust a realistic timescale for the 
completion of the agreement is December 2019. 

  Dec-19 19-20 q4 

66



AUDIT RECOMMENDATION 
DETAILS 

PRIORITY RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 

IMPLEMEN-
TATION 
DATE 

RECOMMEN-
DATION 
STATUS 

UPDATE FOR AUDIT & GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE 28 MARCH 2019 

NEW 
RECOMMEN-
DATION 
STATUS 

NEW 
IMPLEMEN-
TATON 
DATE  

TARGET 
FOLLOW 
UP DATE 

Recycling 
2016/17 

Further consideration 
should be given to 
establishing a recycling 
data protocol between the 
JWT, UBICO and TBC to 
identify expected audit and 
contract performance 
monitoring exercises and 
escalation procedures in 
the possible event of non-
payment of recycling 
credits. 

L Head of 
Community 
Services in 
collaboration 
with JWT 

Sep-17.               
Sep-18.                   
Apr-19. 

  An earlier audit follow up had identified that a recycling 
data protocol had been drafted and that consultation 
was ongoing in relation to finalising the agreement.  
This finalisation has now been put on hold pending the 
current review of the continuation of the Joint Waste 
Committee and the Joint Waste Team.  In view of this 
review a fresh implementation date has been agreed 
as end September 2019. 

  Sep-19 19-20 q3 

Business 
Continuity         
2016/17  

The Corporate BCP 
(CBCP) should be 
reviewed and updated 
accordingly 

M Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

July-17.                
Sep-18.                           
Jan-19. 

  The corporate BCP has now been reviewed and 
additional information concerning stakeholders, 
contact details and priority functions have been 
updated.  The intention is now to have the plan 
approved at the next available management team 
meeting and tested. 

  n/a n/a 

Disabled 
Facilities 
Grants 
2017/18 

Regular monitoring of DFG 
claims should be 
undertaken to ensure they 
are approved in a timely 
manner.  

L Environmental 
Health Manager 

Oct-17.                 
July-18.                      
Feb-19.  

  Monthly reports showing the status of grants are being 
produced.  These reports have assisted identifying 
improvements to the grant approval process to ensure 
that applications are processed and paid promptly.  
Verbal assurance was provided by the Environmental 
Heath Manager that the reports will be reviewed 
directly with officers as part of their one-to-ones in 
relation to grants that have not been processed within 
the set target of 4 months. 

  n/a n/a 

 

67



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee  

Date of Meeting: 28 March 2019  

Subject: Internal Audit Monitoring Report  

Report of: Head of Corporate Services 

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive  

Lead Member: Lead Member Corporate Governance  

Number of Appendices: 3 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

The monitoring report provides the Audit and Governance Committee with the findings of the 
individual audit assignments undertaken for the period December 2018 to February 2019 and 
the status of internal audit recommendations that have been followed-up within the period. 
Appendix 1 is the internal audit opinion for each individual audit assignment completed in the 
period. Appendix 2 provides details of previous audit recommendations that have been 
followed-up and, by using a Red, Amber, Green (RAG) key, identifies whether the 
recommendations have been implemented or not. All recommendations that were due for 
follow-up, have been followed-up.  Appendix 3 provides an overview on the status of the 
Internal Audit Plan.  

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the audit work completed and the assurance given on the adequacy of 
internal controls operating in the systems audited.  

Reasons for Recommendation: 

As confirmed from the internal audit peer assessment completed during 2017/18, the work of 
internal audit is in broad compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 
These standards state that the Chief Audit Executive (CAE) must report functionally to the 
board. This includes reporting on internal audit’s activity relative to its plan.  

 
 

Resource Implications: 

None arising directly from this report.   

Legal Implications: 

By monitoring the implementation of their recommendations, internal audit assists the council 
to minimise risk areas and thereby reduce the prospects of legal challenge. 

 
 
 
 

68

Agenda Item 11



Risk Management Implications: 

If the CAE does not report functionally to the board then this does not comply with PSIAS.  

If there are delays in response to the acceptance or implementation of internal audit 
recommendations, this potentially increases the risk of fraud, error, inefficiency or areas of 
non-compliance within the systems audited.  

Performance Management Follow-up: 

All internal audit recommendations are followed-up within appropriate timescales to give 
assurance they have been implemented. Where a recommendation has not been implemented 
and it has missed two agreed implementation dates then a responsible officer must attend 
committee to answer any questions that arise.  

Environmental Implications:  

None.  

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 Internal audit work to a six month audit plan. Six monthly plans were approved by Audit 
Committee on 28 March 2018 and 19 September 2018. This monitoring report 
summarises the work of the Internal Audit team since the last monitoring report that 
was presented at Audit Committee on 12 December 2018. It is a requirement of the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) that the Chief Audit Executive (Head of 
Corporate Services) reports formally to the ‘board’ (Audit and Governance Committee) 
on the work of internal audit.   

2.0 COMPLETED AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS FOR THE PERIOD  

2.1 In relation to the individual audits within the approved plans, the findings of those audits 
completed during the period December 2018 and February 2019 can be found in 
Appendix 1.  This provides commentary on the activity audited, risk identification, the 
level of control in place to mitigate that risk, the overall audit opinion and any related 
recommendations.   

2.2 When reporting, a ‘split’ opinion can be given. This means an individual opinion is given 
for each risk category identified. This approach enables internal audit to identify to 
management specific areas of control that are operating or not. Assurance opinions are 
categorised as ‘good’, ‘satisfactory’, ‘limited’ and ‘unsatisfactory’. With regards to the 
opinions issued, a ‘limited’ opinion has been issued on the following audits: 

 Ubico client monitoring (budgetary control framework) 

 Community Infrastructure Levy (governance)  

 General Data Protection Regulation (privacy notices)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

69



3.0 FOLLOW-UP OF INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 All audit recommendations that were due to be followed-up in the period have been 
followed-up. This provides the Committee with an overview of the breadth of work 
undertaken and allows the Committee to monitor the implementation of the audit 
recommendations. The list of these recommendations and their status can be found in 
Appendix 2. Of the 15 recommendations followed-up during the period, 12 have been 
implemented, one partially implemented with two yet to be implemented. Two of the 
three recommendations which are either partially or not implemented have now been 
have now been followed-up twice and officers have been requested to attend this 
meeting in accordance with Committee requirements.   

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 None. 

5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 All managers are consulted prior to the commencement of the audit to agree the scope 
and each manager has the opportunity to comment on the draft report and complete a 
client survey at the end of the audit.  

6.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

6.1 Internal Audit Charter and Internal Audit Annual Plan.  

7.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

7.1  None.  

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

8.1 None.  

9.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

9.1 None. 

10.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

10.1 Internal Audit contributes to value for money through their improvement work.  

11.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

11 .1 None.  

 

Background Papers: None  
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Corporate Services  
                                       01684 272002 Graeme.Simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – 2018/19 Audit Work (December 2018 – February 2019)    
  Appendix 2 – Audit recommendations followed-up (Qtr 4) 
 Appendix 3 – Overview status of Audit Plan 2018/19 

70



Appendix 1 
 

List of Audits Completed as Part of the 2018/19 Audit Plan 
 

Audits  

 
Audit: 
UBICO CLIENT MONITORING 2018-19 
 
Introduction: 
In April 2015 Tewkesbury Borough Council joined the local authority owned company Ubico Ltd, whose shareholders also include Cotswold District 
Council, West Oxfordshire District Council, Forest of Dean District Council, Cheltenham Borough Council, Stroud District Council and Gloucestershire 
County Council. Alongside waste and recycling collections, the company also provides street cleansing and grounds maintenance for the borough. 
The value of this contract for 2018/19 is £3,677,130.00. The Gloucestershire Joint Waste Team (JWT) manage the waste, recycling and street 
cleansing elements of the contract and the council currently employs a Grounds Maintenance Project Officer who monitors grounds maintenance. A 
previous Ubico client monitoring audit, undertaken in 2016/17, made a series of recommendations to improve contract monitoring arrangements. The 
implementation dates of these recommendations varied and Audit Committee were keen to establish the current position. This audit has therefore 
been carried out as part of the 2018/19 audit plan and will provide assurance as to the adequacy of the contract monitoring arrangements currently in 
place 
 

Risk identified: Level of 
Control: 

Overall opinion: Recommendations: 

Operational 
 
O1: Data quality 
is poor, 
performance 
measures and 
monitoring 
practices are not 
robust. 
 
O2: Lack of 
governance of 
partnerships 
and overview of 

Satisfactory Since the previous client monitoring audit in 2016/17; 
significant improvements have been made in respect of the 
performance monitoring arrangements in place for the 
council’s contract with Ubico.  
 
Waste, recycling & street cleansing: 
A new suite of Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) have been 
developed and agreed across the Ubico partnership. 
Performance against these KPI’s is reported in the form of a 
monthly summary report; received by the Head of Community 
Services and Joint Waste Officers.  The Environmental 
Services Partnership Board (ESPB) also receive these 
updates as part of their quarterly meetings and the council’s 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee are updated on a six-monthly 

O1- R1 
Recommendation priority: Medium 
Implementation date: April 2020 
Responsible Officer: Head of Community 
Services/ Joint Waste Team 
A review should be undertaken to ensure 
performance indicators are in place for all 
elements of the service and that these include 
measurable targets i.e. timeliness of service 
delivery. Service areas to include: 
- Grounds Maintenance  
- Trade Waste 
- Bring sites 
The review should take into consideration the 

71



contract 
performance.  
 
O3: Non-
compliance to 
contract 
conditions.  
 

basis. In addition, the KPI’s are discussed at the monthly 
contract monitoring meetings. Minutes demonstrated that they 
are subject to adequate discussion and challenge and are 
reviewed by the appropriate officers and members. There are 
currently no KPI’s in place for the trade waste service and it is 
therefore recommended that high level performance indicators 
are agreed i.e. number of customers etc, in light of the 
upcoming trade waste review. The introduction of any new 
KPI’s should take into consideration the systems in place to 
collate the required data and the reporting functionalities 
available [R1].   
 
Grounds maintenance: 
KPI’s for the grass cutting element of this service, specific to 
Tewkesbury Borough Council, have been developed through a 
Member Working Group. These are due to be taken to 
Executive Committee on 6 March for approval and formal 
reporting against these will then begin. Assurance was 
obtained during the audit that the introduction of KPI’s for the 
other aspects of the grounds maintenance service i.e. tree 
works, is included as an action within the grounds 
maintenance improvement plan.  
 
Regular contract monitoring meetings, attended by the 
appropriate Council and Ubico representatives now take place 
in relation to all aspects of the service. This shows a 
significant improvement since the 2016/17 audit which 
reported an unsatisfactory level of control given that there 
were no contract monitoring arrangements in place for 
grounds maintenance.  
 
In respect of recommendations made as part of the previous 
audit, an action remains outstanding in relation to the 
finalisation of a Data Sharing Agreement between the council 
and Ubico [R2].  
 

systems in place to collate the required data and 
the reporting functionalities available when 
agreeing any new KPI’s.  
 
 
O1- R2 
Recommendation priority: Medium 
Implementation date: August 2019 
Responsible Officer: Head of Community 
Services in conjunction with One Legal 
A Data Sharing Agreement should be 
established between Tewkesbury Borough 
Council and Ubico.  
 
 
 
 72



Economic and 
Financial 
 
EF1: Lack of 
budget 
monitoring, 
under or over 
payment of 
invoices and 
potential for 
fraud/ 
duplication.  
 

Limited Monthly budget reports are produced by Ubico and received 
by appropriate officers within the council. In early December 
2018 Ubico highlighted a projected overspend of £153,234. In 
response to this, and to avoid a large balancing item at year 
end, it was agreed that an increase of £33,000 would be 
applied to the three remaining invoices for 2018/19 to cover 
this overspend. However, at the end of Q3, Ubico reported a 
projected overspend of £230,887; a significant increase in just 
one month, with limited supporting information within the 
budget report to explain this current position.  
 
A detailed review of the latest budget figures has been carried 
out by Financial Services which highlighted a number of 
concerns e.g. a 275% overspend on tyres, a 270% overspend 
on PPE, expenditure being reallocated from a holding 
account, budgets not being matched with expenditure etc. 
These queries were raised upon receipt of the latest budget 
report and also at the ESPB meeting in January. Separate 
budget review meetings have now also recently started to take 
place between the council and Ubico to address these issues.  
 
Given the value of the contract and significant projected 
overspend, it is recommended that processes be introduced 
between Community Services and Ubico to limit possible 
overspends i.e. their timely notification and approval (where 
appropriate) [R3]. 
 
The contract requires quarterly reconciliation invoices to be 
raised in order to reflect the actual cost of the services. This 
does not currently take place and a final reconciliation is 
carried out at the year end. Financial Services indicated that 
they were comfortable with the current approach. It is 
therefore recommended that this variation be formally agreed 
in order to reflect the arrangements currently in place [R4].  
 

EF1- R3 
Recommendation priority: High 
Implementation date: April 2019 
Responsible Officer: Head of Community 
Services 
Improvements should be made to the budget 
monitoring of the Ubico contract as follows: 
- Clear processes should be developed and 

agreed between the council and Ubico for 
the timely notification of all overspends. 

- Selected and agreed areas of overspends 
should be subject to approval.  

 
 
EF1- R4 
Recommendation priority: Low 
Implementation date: January 2020 
Responsible Officer: Head of Community 
Services 
The following variations to the Ubico contract 
should be formally agreed: 
- Receipt of a final reconciliation invoice at 

year end as opposed to quarterly. 
- Introduction of budget review meetings.  
 
 
 

 

 

73



Audit: 
SERIOUS AND ORGANISED CRIME FRAMEWORK (HR) AUDIT 2018-19 
 
Introduction: 
This audit is completed as part of the 2018/19 audit plan. Serious and organised crime is a threat to our national security and the Government’s 
Serious and Organised Crime Strategy published in 2013 reported that it costs the UK more than £24 billion a year. Organised crime includes drug 
trafficking, human trafficking, child sexual exploitation, high value fraud and cyber-crime. Local Authority (LA) procurement is at risk of infiltration from 
serious and organised crime and organised crime groups could be benefitting from public sector contracts. In 2013 it was estimated that £2.1 billion of 
fraud was perpetrated against local government (National Fraud Authority Annual Fraud Indicator 2013). 
Conducting a Serious and Organised Crime Audit into areas most vulnerable / attractive to serious and organised crime can help to identify where 
LAs are most at risk and to assess where changes and improvements can be implemented to shut down opportunities for serious and organised 
crime involvement and reduce financial losses. The Home Office have produced a guidance note “framework for Internal Audit and Finance 
Managers” which looks at reviewing the controls in place in relation to the following risk areas; Strategic, Procurement, HR, Finance, Legislative and 
Regulatory functions (Licensing), and Housing.  
This audit will look to focus on the HR section of the guidance referenced above, including policies and procedures, awareness, and reporting 
methods. 
 

Risk identified: Level of 
Control: 

Overall opinion: Recommendations: 

LPC1: the 
Council’s HR 
policies do not 
give 
consideration to 
Serious and 
Organised Crime 
Strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Good LPC1-  
The Council has a number of policies that protect against the risk of 
serious and organised crime. Some will require review and have been 
noted in a report to Overview and Scrutiny. The Counter Fraud Unit is 
also in the process of reviewing the Council’s gifts and hospitality policy. 
Policies are published on the intranet for staff to access and are 
disseminated to staff through starter HR inductions, although this 
currently does not make reference to Whistleblowing and the Bullying 
and Harassment policies (R1). 
 
A survey of a sample of staff found a reasonable level of awareness of 
the existence of policies although the finer details were less well known; 
it was noted that a biannual reminder was sent to all staff in January 
regarding declarations of secondary employment but knowledge of other 
policies (including gifts and hospitality and conflicts of interests) should 
be supported by regular reminders/prompts to staff via News4U or the 
intranet (R2). The Serious and Organised Crime audit guidance makes 

LPC1: R1 
 
Recommendation Priority: Low 
Implementation date: June 2019 
Responsible Officer: Human 
Resources Manager 
 
Recommendation: 
The HR induction should be 
expanded to include reference to the 
council’s Whistleblowing and Bullying 
and Harassment Policies. 
 
LPC1: R2 
 
Recommendation Priority: Low 
Implementation date: June 2019 

74



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LPC2: 
information is not 
retained and 
managed in 
accordance with 
GDPR. 

specific reference to a Recruitment and Selection Policy; the council 
currently does not operate this specific policy but does have supporting 
policies in place. The Interim Head of Human Resources has been 
tasked with reviewing the council’s policy needs and to develop a new 
policy that is reflective of the challenges facing the council – this has 
been identified as a key priority within the emerging Workforce 
Development Strategy.  
 
The Home Office serious and organised crime audit guidance makes 
reference to training for staff to recognise indicators of officers working 
under duress or potential corruption- this is currently not provided; a 
recommendation has been made to complete an assessment of staff 
roles where this training would be of benefit, and subsequently provide 
the training as appropriate (R3). 
 
LPC2-  
The Data collected is stored and managed securely in the HR 
department. 
 

Responsible Officer: Human 
Resources Manager 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff awareness of policies should be 
supported by regular 
reminders/prompts on the 
intranet/News4U regarding: 

• Gifts and hospitality 

• Conflicts of interest 
 
LPC1: R3 
 
Recommendation Priority: Low 
Implementation date: September 
2019 
Responsible Officer: Human 
Resources Manager/ Counter Fraud 
Unit 
 
Recommendation: 
An investigation should be completed 
into the availability of providing 
training to appropriate staff to identify 
indicators of Officers working under 
duress or potential corruption. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

75



OP1: Pre-
employment and 
vetting checks 
are not being 
carried out 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Satisfactory OP1-  
HR issue a Right to Work as part of the invitation to interview to ensure 
that employees are entitled to work in this country. HR complete a 
“starters checklist” with each member of staff’s personnel file, which 
prompts the HR team to collect all the required information; 2 references, 
ID, completed Right to Work form and original copies of qualifications. 
The documents collected are not scrutinised for legitimacy but are 
information received throughout the application process.  This is cross 
referenced and matched to confirm the individual has supplied accurate 
details. Documents and IDs are scanned and copies kept by HR; 
consideration should be given to providing the HR team with training to 
identify fraudulent documents and IDs (R4).  
 
Pre-employment checks are standardised across all job roles within the 
council, regardless of seniority or levels of access to systems and data. It 
is recommended that a review of the current pre-employment/vetting 
checks is undertaken and consideration given to whether high risk roles 
within the council require additional checks (R5). Any changes to 
procedures should be documented within the relevant policy 
 
DBS checks can be competed for certain job roles and the council has a 
policy regarding this process, although this is now outdated. The policy is 
scheduled to be reviewed, and it is recommended that this done so in 
line with the development of the Recruitment and Selection policy, with 
job roles requiring DBS checks clearly defined (see R6).  
 
OP2-  
A survey of staff found a reasonable level of awareness of the existence 
of the secondary employment policy, although 5 out of the 21 responses 
commented that they were unsure of what to do in the event that they 
started another job. There was a mixed response regarding whether the 
training was sufficient; a recommendation to issue reminders has been 
made (see R1). Secondary employment forms are issued every 2 years 
to all staff, with 100% return rate in 2018. 
 
 

OP1: R4 
 
Recommendation Priority: Low 
Implementation date: September 
2019 
Responsible Officer: Human 
Resources Manager/ Counter Fraud 
Unit 
 
Recommendation: 
Consideration should be given to 
providing the HR team with training to 
identify fraudulent IDs and 
documentation. 
 
OP1: R5 
 
Recommendation Priority: Low 
Implementation date: September 
2019 
Responsible Officer: Human 
Resources Manager 
 
Recommendation: 
Consideration should be given to the 
current level of pre-employment 
checks undertaken to review whether 
high risk roles require enhanced 
vetting checks. Appropriate checks 
might include:  

- Credit checks 
- Employment verification 
- Identity verification 

 
Any changes to procedures should 
then be documented within the 

76



 
OP2: staff and 
Members do not 
adhere to 
appropriate 
policies and 
procedures 
regarding 
secondary 
employment, 
declarations of 
interest. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The secondary employment form is part of the wider Council’s Code of 
Conduct. This outlines the expectations placed on Officers regarding 
behaviours both inside and outside work. Previously, new starters were 
required to sign the Code to evidence that they have read, understood 
and will adhere to the code however this is no longer completed. It is 
recommended that the Code be amended to include this declaration, 
issued to all staff, signed and returned to HR (R7).  
 
As part of the Code, staff are required to make written declarations 
where a conflict of interest may occur between staff’s personal and 
official duties; this includes “Staff who have access to computer 
databases of customers updating their own personal records or those of 
the partner, relative or personal friend”. This exercise is not completed 
council wide and there is no central register of these declarations. The 
Code of Conduct has not been fully reviewed since 2011 and it is 
therefore recommended that this be completed (R8). As part of this 
review an exercise should be undertaken to identify high risk 
departments and the most appropriate method for recording this 
information. Appropriate software controls should then be implemented 
to protect the council against opportunities for fraud and protect officers 
against allegations of fraud, bias, or breaches of GDPR.  
 
As a consequence of a number of FOI requests about Officers outside 
interests, the Council has reviewed its procedures regarding secondary 
employment and outside interests. A Protocol for Councillors and 
Officers involved in the Planning Process has been in place since 2006 
and was reviewed in April 2015 when the Council introduced Public 
Speaking at Planning Committee meetings. The Protocol was further 
reviewed in 2016 and the current version approved by the Council in 
December 2016. Although a working document, the Protocol had not 
previously been circulated to each officer involved in the Planning 
process and neither had there been any requirement for those officers to 
confirm that they had read, understood and undertook to comply with the 
Protocol.  This requirement was introduced in 2016 and all officers 
involved in the planning process have returned the form as required. In 
order to provide a consistency of approach for officers in identifying and 

relevant policy. 
 
OP1: R6 
 
Recommendation Priority: Low 
Implementation date: 6 months 
Responsible Officer: Human 
Resources Manager 
 
Recommendation: 
The DBS policy should be reviewed 
and updated and ensure that it 
clearly defines roles requiring DBS 
checks. 
 
OP2: R7 

Recommendation Priority: Medium 

Implementation date: June 2019 

Responsible Officer: Human 

Resources Manager 

 

Recommendation: 

The Code of Conduct form should be 
amended to require staff to sign to 
demonstrate that they have read, 
understood and will comply with the 
Code. This should be issued to all 
staff and returned to HR once 
completed. 
 
OP2: R8 
 
Recommendation Priority: Medium 
Implementation date: April 2020 
Responsible Officer: Human 

77



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OP3: staff and 
Members do not 
adhere to 
appropriate 
policies and 
procedures 
regarding gifts 
and hospitality. 

declaring potential conflicts of interest, it is considered that the Code of 
Conduct should be reviewed in line with R8 above. 
 
The Finance Department request annual declarations of pecuniary 
interests in a “related parties transactions” form which is required by law 
to be included in the Council’s statement of accounts. This is issued to all 
Members, CLT, Heads of Service and Ops Managers. Members are also 
required under the Localism Act 2011 to submit a register of interests; 
this is provided for each Councillor at the start of each electoral term, and 
annual reminders are sent out for the duration of their appointment. 
According to legislation, these registers must be published on the 
council’s website, however this is currently not completed; the Borough 
Solicitor is contesting this statutory requirement, most recently through 
the review being conducted by the Committee for Standards in Public 
Life whose recommendations will be considered by the Government in 
due course.  The Borough Solicitor has provided evidence that this 
information is collected. The council’s webpage and states that “all 
Members have completed a Register of Members’ Interest form which 
sets out their pecuniary and other interests in accordance with the 
Council’s Code of Conduct. The forms can be viewed, or copies 
obtained”. Considering the ethical considerations and the ongoing 
discussions, no recommendation has been made at this time. 
 
OP3-  
Members are regularly prompted by Democratic Services to remind them 
to declare any gifts and hospitality received, however staff do not receive 
any additional training after the time of induction; the knowledge of the 
contents of the policies should be supported by regular top-up sessions, 
or prompts on the intranet or in News4U articles (see recommendation 
R1 above).  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Resources Manager in consultation 
with the Borough Solicitor and the 
Counter Fraud Unit 
 
The Council’s Code of Conduct 

should be reviewed to ensure it 

remains appropriate. Consideration 

should be given to the management 

and monitoring of conflicts of 

interests, including:  

- conflicts such as staff having 
access to amending systems/ 
accounts of family and friends 

- process for linking declared 
interests to checks within the 
finance system e.g. raising 
creditors 

- employment of spouses 
where a conflict of interest 
may arise 

 
 
 

78



SPE1: Staff are 
unable to raise 
concerns in 
confidence 
 

Satisfactory SPE1- 
The council’s current Whistleblowing Policy is available to staff, members 
and the public through the intranet and the council’s website.  
Whistleblowing was raised as part of the Counter Fraud Unit introductory 
training to staff and this information should be provided to members as 
part of their introductory training after election.  The Serious and 
Organised Crime Checklist Action Plan, presented to Audit Committee on 
12 December 2018, notes the intention to review the policy and its 
effectiveness by June 2019.   
 
In respect of the current policy whistleblowing concerns raised by staff  
should be directed to the Head of Human Resources – this is no longer a 
post within the council - therefore clarity within the policy is required in 
respect of which member of staff within the current organisational 
structure such concerns should be addressed to.  The HR department 
indicated that there were no reported whistleblowing cases in the last two 
years.  Through confidential responses from a questionnaire on 
whistleblowing sent to a sample of staff it has been identified that:- 

• Whistleblowing Issues raised by staff are not being reported to 
HR  

• There are still perceived barriers to raising issues such as 
reprisals, lack of confidence that concerns will be taken seriously 
and treated confidentially. 

• There is confusion over the types of issues that should be raised 
under the whistleblowing policy and the separate 
bullying/harassment policy. 

 
These concerns should be addressed through awareness training and 
appropriate amendments to the policy itself (R9).  
 
In addition, it was noted that there is currently no formal reporting to 
senior management on the number of whistleblowing cases handled and 
it was agreed with the Head of Corporate Services that this information 
will be provided to senior management as part of the quarterly HR report. 
 

SPE1: R9 
 
Recommendation priority: Medium 
Implementation date: September 
2019 
Responsible Officer: Counter Fraud 
Unit 
 
Recommendation: 
As part of the current review of the 
whistleblowing policy and its 
effectiveness, it is recommended 
that:- 

- The policy is updated to 
reflect the current 
organisational structure 

- Awareness training should be 
provided for all staff and 
members in relation to the 
types of concerns that should 
be raised under whistle 
blowing and the 
bullying/harassment policy.  In 
addition, the training should 
seek to provide assurance 
that perceived barriers to 
raising concerns will be dealt 
with. 

- Management training is 
provided in respect of the 
handling of potential 
whistleblowing issues 
including the reporting of 
these to HR 
 
 

79



EF1: Failure to 
safeguard public 
money, being 
susceptible for 
fraud and money 
laundering. 

N/A Financial risks will be covered by the CFU in the 2019/20 work plan.  

 

 
Audit: 
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) AUDIT 2018-19 
 
Introduction: 
This audit is completed as part of the 2018/19 audit plan.   The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a tool for local authorities in England and 
Wales to help deliver infrastructure to support the development of the area. The levy may be payable on development which creates net additional 
floor space, where the gross internal area of new build is 100 square metres or more. That limit does not apply to new houses or flats, and a charge 
can be levied on a single house or flat of any size.  This audit will look to ensure that the framework for charging, monitoring, collecting and 
administering CIL is in place and fit for purpose, prior to first payments being taken. 
 

Risk identified: Level of 
Control: 

Overall opinion: Recommendations: 

Legislative and 
Policy 
Compliance 
 
LPC1: Appropriate 
policies are not in 
place to support 
the management 
and receipt of CIL 
which could lead 
to potential 
challenge by 
developers. 

Limited Relevant policies are in place that lay out how CIL will be calculated, 
instalment arrangements, and procedures for requesting a 
review/appeal. The policies are quite high level and not particularly 
user friendly, based primarily on the Regulations; further clarity is 
required within the Regulation 123 list (see R5 below). 
 
A Note of Governance has been drafted, although this is yet to be 
agreed by all 3 partner authorities (Tewkesbury Borough Council, 
Cheltenham Borough Council and Gloucester City Council). The 
document should lay out the processes for collection and 
administration of the CIL income. The proposed governance states 
that Tewkesbury Borough Council is the recommended administrator 
of CIL, which has implications on the council’s resources which will 
need to be considered at the time of any decision on that matter. 
Before the governance can be agreed, the proposal must be first 
taken to a meeting of the Joint Advisory Group which was scheduled 
to meet in January 2019 but has been rearranged for the end of 

LPC1: R1 
Recommendation priority: High 
 
Implementation date: September 2019 
 
Responsible Officer:  
Head of Development Services 
 
Recommendation Details: 
Governance of CIL administration and 
spending of CIL income should be 
agreed as a matter of urgency. 
 

80



March. The proposal is then intended to be taken to steering groups 
arranged at each council, and finally to cabinet/committees for 
adoption. This may take some time, especially with the Borough 
elections happening in May. Considering that CIL is “live” and the first 
Demand Notice for CIL income was issued on 18/02/2019, it is 
important that the methods for managing this income is agreed as a 
matter of urgency (see R1). 
 

Operational 
 
O1: The council 
does not have a 
system for the 
effective charging, 
collection and 
monitoring of CIL 
developments 
meaning there is 
the potential that 
CIL monies will not 
be promptly and 
accurately 
collected. 
 
O2: Staff are not 
trained to process 
CIL accurately and 
therefore not all 
CIL monies are 
identified and 
collected. 
 

Limited O1:  
A review of the system for processing, managing and monitoring CIL 
eligible applications was completed and found that the system is fit for 
purpose. The system is able to record relevant information, is 
auditable and generates a number of automatic stages in line with the 
regulations. The parameters of the charging schedule and the 
instalments policy have been accurately uploaded.  
 
However, several issues were found during testing as follows: 

• Final payment for the system was goods receipted and paid 
prior to the CIL Managers sign off. Whilst it is recognised that 
this is low risk as the system is now functional and in place, it 
may be that this is a gap in the wider process of goods 
receipting and paying invoices within the department; a 
recommendation has been made to review the process to 
ensure this does not happen in future (R4). 

• Payment for the Council’s Exacom system was allocated to 
the JCS budget, however this should be allocated against the 
reserve already in place for this expenditure; this has been 
raised and addressed during the course of the audit. 

• Lack of consultation between departments with key interests. 

• Routine operational procedures for the collection, accounting 
and administering of CIL is yet to be discussed between 
departments and agreed upon. This includes; payment 
methods, how income will be accounted, roles in the 
processing, reporting procedures for monitoring income, the 
reconciliation process between income received and income 
due, the procedure for reporting what income has been spent 

O1: R2 
Recommendation priority: High 
 
Implementation date: September 2019 

Responsible Officer:  
Head of Development Services 

Recommendation Details: 
A CIL Working Group should be 
established to discuss the operational 
practices. This should include 
consideration to both instances (if the 
Council becomes the administering 
authority or if the council’s operate 
separately). Procedures for 
consideration may include: 

- Monitoring processes and 
reconciliation process 

- Challenge and escalation 
process for non-
payment/incorrect payment 
from partners 

- Reporting processes 

- Invoicing processes 

81



on what project. 

• The first Demand Notice for payment was issued on 
18/02/2019, and whilst this is for £0.00 (due to a relief being 
applied) it highlights the fact that the Council could be 
collecting CIL income before the governance and procedures 
have been agreed.  

 
As a result of the above findings a CIL working group has been 
established to identify the fundamental operational processes, 
required to administer CIL (R2). The CIL working group should 
consider the operational procedures for managing the service both in 
respect of the proposed governance note being agreed, and in the 
event that it is not.  
 
If the governance concept is agreed and the Council become the 
administering authority for all 3 partner authorities, processes for the 
following need to be identified and agreed; invoicing procedures for 
partner authorities, monitoring and reporting procedures for receipt of 
income from partner authority, the reimbursement of partner 
authorities set up costs, challenge and escalation procedures in the 
event of failed/incorrect payments, consultation processes with 
parishes and the proposed JCS and County Committee, and the 
process for overcoming a stalemate when the 4 voting parties of the 
JCS Committee cannot agree on CIL expenditure. This list is not 
exhaustive but highlights some of the main risk areas to discuss in the 
group. 
 
The process for administering CIL if the governance proposal is not 
agreed is more straight forward, however consideration should still be 
given to; monitoring and reconciliation processes between income 
received and income due, reporting procedures for tracking CIL 
income against CIL expenditure and consultation processes with 
Parish councils. Again this list is not exhaustive. 
 
 
 

- Format of the annual report 

- Decision for allocating CIL 
spending 

- Consultation processes with 
parishes to ensure the 
neighbourhood proportion is not 
spent on the same 
infrastructure as Section 106 
projects 

- Contingency of staffing and 
ongoing training needs 

 

Once the procedures have been 
established, these should be agreed 
formally with the other partners and a 
Memorandum of Understanding or 
written agreement should be obtained. 

 

The CIL Working Group may also be 
the appropriate platform to review the 
Regulation 123 List (see R5 below). 

 

O1: R3 
Recommendation priority: Medium 
 
Implementation date: September 2019 

Responsible Officer:  
Head of Development Services 

 

82



It was identified that the expected costs for the set up and 
administration of CIL in the first year for all partner authorities 
(Tewkesbury Borough Council, Cheltenham Borough Council and 
Gloucester City Council) is approximately £211,492.73 and estimates 
of administration costs alone for year 2 and 3 of £118,795.00 and 
£120,684.00; a total of £450,971.73 for 3 years. This is almost 
£82,000 additional costs to that reported to Council at the time of 
approval in October 2018, and does not include any legal fees or 
consultations that may arise throughout years 2 and 3 of operation. 
 
These costs are due to be recovered through the 5% administration 
costs that can legally be retained from CIL income, but in order to fully 
recover this amount, £9,019,434.60 of CIL income will need to be 
collected. It is recommended that an exercise should be completed to 
identify potential income in any applications that may be in progress, 
to provide some assurance that the recovery of costs is still feasible 
(R3). 
 
O2: 
There is reasonable assurance that staff involved with the system 
have received relevant training. This is limited to a small number of 
staff and a contingency should be identified if the CIL Managers 12 
month contract is not continued (included as an action point in R2). 
Consideration should be given to the resilience of the operation of CIL 
in the absence of the CIL Manager. In line with recommendation 3, 
the expected workload of the CIL team should be identified for the 
coming year to confirm whether the current resources are sufficient to 
operate the service.  It is important that responsibility across 
departments is made clear and set out in the working group.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation Details: 
An exercise should be completed to 
identify potential income in any 
applications that may be in progress, to 
provide some assurance that the 
recovery of costs is still feasible. 

 

O1: R4 
Recommendation priority: Low 
 
Implementation date: September 2019 

Responsible Officer:  
Head of Development Services 

Recommendation Details: 
The process for goods receipting of CIL 
invoices should be reviewed to ensure 
that this is a one off and not a wider 
gap in the procedures. 
 

83



Social, Political 
and Ethical 
 
SPE1: the 
council’s 
reputation is 
damaged due to 
funding being 
spent on 
inappropriate 
infrastructure. 

Satisfactory The Council’s Regulation 123 list (the List) should clearly define 
where funding for particular projects will be sourced, whether this is 
through Section 106 monies or CIL income. The List should provide 
transparency and reassure the public/developers that infrastructure is 
not being funded by both funding streams, and “double dipping” which 
is prohibited within the CIL Regulations. The List was reviewed and 
was found to be based primarily on the legislation and is not user 
friendly; the List is open for interpretation, meaning that Developers 
could contest the amount of S106 monies paid on the basis that their 
CIL contributions have been used to fund the infrastructure.  
 
A desk top exercise was completed and reviewed a number of other 
Local Authorities Regulation 123 Lists and found that they were much 
more prescriptive in the projects to be funded by each income route. 
The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government held a 
consultation on proposed amendments to the CIL regulations 
between 20/12/2018 and 31/01/2019, in which it was proposed that 
the Regulation 123 list should be abolished. This may still take time to 
come into full effect, so whilst the Regulation 123 list remains in place 
and considering the potential future where this is no longer required, a 
recommendation has been made to establish the methods for 
recording CIL income against CIL expenditure; this will ensure that 
the council can clearly demonstrate income from each CIL liable 
property and its distribution to specific infrastructure projects. This 
may be a project for the recommended CIL working group. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SPE1: R5 
Recommendation priority: Medium 
 
Implementation date: September 2019 
 
Responsible Officer:  
Head of Development Services 
 
Recommendation Details: 
The method for recording CIL income 
and allocation to specific infrastructure 
projects should be identified and 
agreed, to ensure that the council can 
clearly demonstrate CIL monies from 
income to infrastructure.   

84



Economic and 
Financial 
 
EF1: Loss of 
income/income not 
collected promptly 
 
EF2: the charges 
have been set too 
high to make 
developments 
liable and 
therefore limits 
growth 
 

Good EF1: 
According to testing above, a system for the administration of CIL 
eligible applications is in place and fit for purpose. The system allows 
CIL eligibility to be calculated, and templates for each stage within the 
CIL process to be automatically generated on receipt of relevant 
information as the applications progress. However, the systems 
interface with the Council’s financial system (Civica) is yet to be 
operational. The procedures for the collection, management and 
dissemination of income are also yet to be agreed. Both these points 
should be covered within the CIL Working Group as recommended 
above (R2).  
 
EF2:  
A review of the Examiners report confirmed that the proposals were 
financially viable, and noted that “although the expected CIL receipts 
are modest in comparison to the overall sizeable funding gap, they 
would nonetheless make an appreciable contribution towards 
infrastructure. I am satisfied that the figures are based on sound 
sources of evidence and that the introduction of a CIL regime is 
justified.”  
 
It was also commented “The evidence suggests that most residential 
and older persons development will broadly remain viable across the 
JCS area if the proposed charges are applied”. The charges as 
outlined and agreed within the Examiners report were found to have 
been accurate to that in the Council’s charging schedule. 

 
 
 

Technology 
 
T1: the system 
used for recording 
CIL liable 
developments is 
not appropriate 
and is not 
compliant with 
GDPR. 

Good The contract between the council and the supplier (Idox) is 
comprehensive regarding the responsibilities regarding data 
protection. A review of the council’s website found no reference in the 
privacy notice or retention schedule regarding the collection of 
personal information; a GDPR Privacy Notice audit is in progress and 
will pick up this issue, and an agreed action has been arranged to 
update the retention schedule.  

 
 
 

 

85



 
Audit: 
GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATIONS AUDIT 2018-19 
 
Introduction: 
The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) became effective on 25 May 2018 and sets out requirements for how organisations must handle 
personal data. The council handles and stores significant amounts of personal data as part of its routine service to its customers. Failure to comply 
with this legislation, and consequently handle and dispose of personal data appropriately, could lead to significant financial and reputational costs for 
the council. This audit is undertaken as part of the 2018/19 audit plan and will focus specifically on the requirement for the publication of privacy 
notices. A privacy notice is a statement that discloses the ways in which the council gathers, uses and manages its customer’s data and fulfils a legal 
requirement to protect customer’s privacy under the GDPR.  
 

Risk 
identified: 

Level of 
Control: 

Overall opinion: Recommendations: 

Legislative 
and Policy 
Compliance 
 
LPC1: Failure 
to comply with 
the General 
Data 
Protection 
Regulation.  
 

Limited  Since the introduction of the Data Protection Act 2018, which 
incorporates the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR), there 
has been significant work towards achieving compliance. This includes 
the publication of privacy notices on the council’s website. A review of 
these notices identified that there are some aspects of the council’s 
services that are not currently covered by a privacy notice; for example, 
procurement, safeguarding, online forms etc. By not having appropriate 
privacy notices in place, the council is at risk of being in breach of the 
legislation. This therefore poses a risk of a potential fine and/or 
enforcement action along with the associated reputational impact. It is 
therefore recommended that privacy notices be published for all 
relevant services and activities; progress towards their completion and 
any issues should be escalated to the GDPR Information Group [R1].  
 
A further quality assurance check on a sample of privacy notices 
concluded that a ‘lawful basis for processing’ is not currently specified 
within the notices. There is a mandatory requirement to provide data 
subjects with this information under GDPR. Potential gaps were also 
identified in the information published in terms of the purpose of 
processing and the sharing of data. It is therefore recommended that a 
review of the council’s existing privacy notices is undertaken to ensure 
they are inclusive of all mandatory information. Moving forward, a 

LPC1- R1 
Recommendation priority: High 
Implementation date: December 2019 
Responsible Officer: Business 
Administration Manager in conjunction 
with Operational Managers 
 
All aspects of the council’s services 
should be covered by an appropriate 
privacy notice: 
 
- Where gaps have been identified 

these should be included within an 
action plan and progress against their 
completion and/or any issues 
escalated to the GDPR Information 
Group. 

- A review of the council’s existing 
privacy notices should be undertaken 
to ensure they are inclusive of ‘the 
lawful basis for processing’ and list all 
processing activities and 

86



review should be carried out on an annual basis by the relevant 
Information Asset Owner to ensure that any new activities or processes 
are captured in the privacy notices [R1].  
 
Under the GDPR the council has a duty to ensure that privacy 
information is made available as part of any data collection process at 
the time the personal data is obtained. This therefore encompasses any 
paper based communication methods i.e. application forms. 3 out of 4 
documents reviewed during the audit did not have this privacy 
information included i.e. a link to the privacy webpage. A review of 
documentation should therefore be undertaken to ensure that where 
this involves the processing of personal data, the relevant privacy 
information is published [R2]. 
 
The council is also required to provide data subjects with the name and 
contact details of the supervisory authority to whom they can make a 
complaint in respect of privacy information. In the council’s case this will 
be the Information Commissioners Office (ICO). This information was 
not published at the time of the audit and it is therefore recommended 
that this be made available on the data protection summary webpage 
[R3].  
 
Responsibility for compliance with data protection legislation is clear 
within the authority. An up to date Data Protection Policy is in place and 
with regard to privacy notices, this makes clear reference to Information 
Asset Owners (i.e. Operational Managers) having responsibility for 
ensuring that these are complete and up to date. The policy itself is 
monitored by the Data Protection Officer and reviewed by the Senior 
Information Risk Owner (SIRO). This audit will contribute towards the 
SIRO’s review in determining whether specific elements of the policy 
are being adhered to.   
 

organisations with whom the data is 
shared. 

- Consideration must be given to 
where there is a right to withdraw 
consent requirement. 

 
Moving forward, all privacy notices 
should be subject to an annual review.  
 
 
LPC1- R2 
Recommendation priority: High 
Implementation date: December 2019 
Responsible Officer: Business 
Administration Manager in conjunction 
with Operational Managers 
 
A review of documentation should be 
undertaken to ensure that where this 
involves the processing of personal data 
the relevant privacy information is 
published.  
 
 
LPC1- R3 
Recommendation priority: High 
Implementation date: September 2019 
Responsible Officer: Business 
Administration Manager 
 
Details of the data subjects ‘right to 
lodge a complaint with a supervisory 
authority’ (i.e. the ICO), should be 
published on the council’s data 
protection summary web page.  
 

 

87



CORPORATE IMPROVEMENT WORK 
 
Business Continuity 
The corporate business continuity plan has been a draft for some time and corporate improvement days were allocated to review the robustness of 
the plan including priority functions, contact details and make contextual alterations.  The plan is now due to go to management team for finalisation. 
 
Pool Car Scheme 
The objective of this corporate project is to introduce a fleet of low emission/hybrid pool cars, for use by employees undertaking customer visits in 
preference to the use of their own vehicles as a means to reduce costs associated with mileage and encourage better organisation of customer visits. 
Internal audit have contributed significantly as part of the project team, predominantly through the development of a project risk register and how 
identified risks can be managed. An ongoing element of the work is to continue to attend the pool car working group meetings and to present the 
positive management of risk at staff briefing sessions. 
 
Homeless Waiver 
An outstanding audit recommendation related to the procurement of a storage service in discharging the council’s duty to safeguard homeless 
individual’s belongings.  Earlier corporate improvement work by internal audit had involved the drafting of a service specification.  As an outcome of 
discussions concerning the specification it was identified that there were aspects of the storage service which were specialised, such as disposing of 
items including perishable goods during the collection service; and disposing of items (including fridges, freezers etc) not collected from storage.  As a 
result, internal audit have drafted a waiver for signing. 
 
 

Recommendations Rating 

Priority: Definition: 

1 High A fundamental weakness in the system that puts the Authority at risk. This might include non-compliance with legislation or council policy, or may result in major 

risk of loss or damage to council assets, information or reputation. Requires action as a matter of urgency; to be addressed within a 3-6 month timeframe wherever 

possible or within an extended time frame as agreed with Internal Audit if the recommendation requires extensive resources or time. 

2 Medium Observations refer mainly to issues that have an important effect on the system of internal control but do not require immediate action. Legislation or policy are 

unlikely to be breached as a consequence of these issues, although could cause limited loss of assets, information or adverse publicity or embarrassment. Internal 

audit suggest improvement to system design to minimise risk and/or improve efficiency of service. To be resolved within a 6-9 month timescale.  

3 Low Observations refer to issues that would if corrected, improve internal control in general and ensure good practice, but are not vital to the overall system of internal 

control. A desirable improvement to the system, to be introduced within a 9-12 month period. 

 
 
 
 

88



Level of control 

Level of control: Definition: Guidance: 

Good Significant assurance- There is a sound system of control, and the controls are 
being consistently applied. Limited scope for improving existing arrangements. 
Significant action unlikely to be required. 

No audit recommendations or no more than 3 low priority (3) 
recommendations. 

Satisfactory  Reasonable assurance- There is a sound system of control, and the controls are 
generally being consistently applied. However, there are some minor weaknesses 
in control, and/or evidence of non-compliance. 

No more than 2 medium priority (2) recommendations, possibly with 
some low (3) recommendations. 

Limited Limited assurance- Lapses in the framework of control in a number of areas, 
and/or evidence of significant non-compliance. 

Between 1 and 3 high priority (1) and possibly several other priority 
recommendations OR 3 or more medium (2) recommendations. 

Unsatisfactory Inadequate assurance- The system of control is weak, and/or there is evidence of 
significant non-compliance, which exposes the council to the risk of significant 
error or unauthorised activity.   

4 or more Priority 1s OR 6 or more medium priority (2) recommendations. 

 

89



Appendix 2 
 

Outstanding Audit Recommendations – Quarter 4 2018/19 Follow Up   
       

         
         

KEY                 

  
       

  

Recommendation status: 
 

Priority: 
    

  

  Recommendation reviewed and found not to be implemented.  
 

H (high) 

A fundamental weakness in the system that puts the Authority at risk. This might 
include non-compliance with legislation or council policy, or may result in major risk 
of loss or damage to council assets, information or reputation. Requires action as a 
matter of urgency; ideally to be addressed within a 3-6 month timeframe wherever 
possible or within an extended time frame as agreed with Internal Audit if the 
recommendation requires extensive resources or time. 

  Recommendation reviewed and found to be partially implemented. 
 

M 
(medium) 

Observations refer mainly to issues that have an important effect on the system of 
internal control but do not require immediate action. Legislation or policy are unlikely 
to be breached as a consequence of these issues, although could cause limited loss 
of assets, information or adverse publicity or embarrassment. Internal audit suggest 
improvement to system design to minimise risk and/or improve efficiency of service. 
To ideally be resolved within a 6-9 month timescale.  

  Recommendation reviewed and found to be implemented.    

L (low) 

Observations refer to issues that would if corrected, improve internal control in 
general and ensure good practice, but are not vital to the overall system of internal 
control. A desirable improvement to the system, to be introduced within a 9-12 
month period. 

 

Audit  Recommendation Details Priority  Responsible 
Officer 

Expected 
implementation 
date for 
recommendation 

Date 
Audit 
Followed 
Up 

Current 
Recommendation 
Status 

Further Audit Comments Target 
Follow 
Up 
Date 

Council Tax 
Liability, 
Discounts 
and 
Exemptions 
2018-19 

A process should be 
established for issuing 
penalties where the council 
tax penalty policy criteria for 
incorrectly claimed 
exemptions and discounts 
have been met. 

Medium Revenues 
and Benefits 
Manager 

Oct-18 Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken - 
implemented 

It was confirmed that the 
process has now been set up. 
The policy was already in place, 
but the procedure for raising 
these penalties has now been 
disseminated and monitoring 
arrangements in place.  

18-19 
q4 

90



Appendix 2 
Audit  Recommendation Details Priority  Responsible 

Officer 
Expected 
implementation 
date for 
recommendation 

Date 
Audit 
Followed 
Up 

Current 
Recommendation 
Status 

Further Audit Comments Target 
Follow 
Up 
Date 

Disabled 
Facility 
Grants 18-19 

The Head of Community 
Services should obtain 
evidence of the completion of 
the Severn Vale Housing 
Works. 

High Head of 
Community 
Services 

Dec-18 Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken – not 
implemented 

The Head of Community 
Services provided an email from 
the Development and Asset 
Management Innovation Lead 
from Bromford (was Severn 
Vale) confirming that all the 
works were carried out and 
installed in line with the original 
proposals. Further verification is 
required eg spot check or 
installation certificates.  

18-19 
q4 

Garden 
Waste 2018-
19 

The garden waste crew 
induction should include a 
briefing note on the licence 
scheme for garden waste 
and periodic refresher 
training should be given. 
Reminders should also be 
visible in the crew files and/or 
cabs and this should be 
monitored and reported 
regularly at the 
Ubico/Customer Services 
meeting.  Regular spot 
checks should be carried out 
in order to ensure that bins 
are only emptied where the 
service has been paid for.  

High Ubico 
Operations 
Manager 

Oct-18 Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken - 
implemented 

Confirmation was provided by 
the Ubico Operations Manager 
that this recommendation has 
been implemented through staff 
debriefs, monthly meetings and 
supervisory checks. Audit will 
complete similar testing to 
previous within quarter 1 of 
2019/20 to confirm that bins 
without sticker licences are not 
being emptied. 

18-19 
q4 

91



Appendix 2 
Audit  Recommendation Details Priority  Responsible 

Officer 
Expected 
implementation 
date for 
recommendation 

Date 
Audit 
Followed 
Up 

Current 
Recommendation 
Status 

Further Audit Comments Target 
Follow 
Up 
Date 

Ubico fleet 
management 
2018/19 

To enhance vehicle contract 
monitoring, the new suite of 
PI’s should be reported to 
ESPB. “Fleet” should be 
incorporated as a standard 
agenda item in ESPB 
meetings.  

Low Ubico and 
TBC 

end December 
2018 

Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken - 
implemented 

A review of ESPB minutes 
confirmed that KPIs are being 
reported. Moving forward, ‘fleet’ 
will be added as a standard 
agenda item.  

18-19 
q4 

Ubico fleet 
management 
2018/19 

A value for money decision 
needs to be made on the 
continued retention of Oscar 
3 and its current hire by 
Stroud.  If the arrangement 
continues, a formal 
agreement needs to be 
established.   

Medium Head of 
Community 
Services 

end November 
2018 

Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken - 
implemented 

This was subject to an Executive 
report 21st November; the 
decision was made to purchase 
a new vehicle and sell the other 
vehicle to Stroud District 
Council.  

18-19 
q4 

Cemeteries      
2017-18 

The ability for payments to 
be taken by cemeteries staff 
should be implemented.  

L Asset 
Manager 

Mar 18.                 
July-18.                      
Dec-18 

Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken - 
implemented 

A new system is being 
introduced to allow for online 
payments for cemeteries related 
services. The Cemetery Support 
Officer is being trained to use 
the system to take payments 
through the online system.  

18-19 
q4 

Council Tax 
Recovery 
2017-18 

An order form should be 
completed for the 
enforcement agents contract, 
including appropriate 
performance and monitoring 
measures.  

M Revenues 
and Benefits 
Manager in 
collaboration 
with One 
Legal 

Sep-18.                      
Dec-18. 

Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken - 
implemented 

On discussion with the 
Revenues and Benefits 
Manager, it was confirmed that 
this is due to be completed by 
31st March 2019 as it is linked to 
novation of contract which needs 
to be resolved in the next couple 
of weeks. Internal Audit will 
review this in the next year. 

18-19 
q4 

92



Appendix 2 
Audit  Recommendation Details Priority  Responsible 

Officer 
Expected 
implementation 
date for 
recommendation 

Date 
Audit 
Followed 
Up 

Current 
Recommendation 
Status 

Further Audit Comments Target 
Follow 
Up 
Date 

Council Tax 
Recovery 
2017-18 

The council’s collection 
policy should be reviewed to 
ensure that the policy 
remains relevant, robust and 
any changes to legislation 
have been included.  

L Revenues 
and Benefits 
Manager 

Sep-18.                      
Dec-18. 

Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken - 
implemented 

The Revenues and Benefits 
Manager confirmed that the 
policy will be in place and 
effective from 1st April 2019. 

18-19 
q4 

Housing 
Benefits- 
DHP                   
2017-18 

In line with the scheduled 
review of the Council’s DHP 
policy, consideration should 
be given to the recovery of 
overpayments, monitoring 
functions and the 
establishment of contingency 
funds. 

L Revenues 
and Benefits 
Manager 

Jun 18.                       
Oct-18 

Mar-19 Follow Up 
Undertaken - 
partially 
implemented 

The Revenues and Benefits 
Manager confirmed that 
recovery of DHP overpayments 
is now referenced in the DHP 
policy however the procedure for 
collection is yet to be 
established. New 
implementation agreed: end of 
April 2019.  

18-19 
q4 

Complaints 
2016/17 

The council's data sharing 
protocol with the County 
Council should be updated to 
include reference to 
complaints data and how 
they are handled by the JWT. 

L Head of 
Community 
Services 

Sep-17.                 
May-18.                  
Oct-18  

Mar-19 Follow Up 
Undertaken - not 
implemented 

A protocol is in place covering all 
partners dated 2014. It was 
recommended to review this, 
given GDPR. The 
recommendation is currently on 
hold whilst the future of the Joint 
Waste Committee/Team is 
reviewed. New implementation 
date of Sep-19. 

18-19 
q4 

Leisure 
Centre   
2016-2017 

The outcome based 
scorecard should be 
completed and reported 
against 

M Asset 
Manager 

Apr-18.                         
Oct-18 

Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken - 
implemented 

The Asset Manager confirmed 
that the scorecard has now been 
completed and this is due to be 
reported to the next Strategic 
Partnership Board. 

18-19 
q4 

93



Appendix 2 
Audit  Recommendation Details Priority  Responsible 

Officer 
Expected 
implementation 
date for 
recommendation 

Date 
Audit 
Followed 
Up 

Current 
Recommendation 
Status 

Further Audit Comments Target 
Follow 
Up 
Date 

Ubico Client 
Monitoring            
2016-17 

A KPI should be established 
to measure non completion 
of works in relation to the 
maintenance of Tewkesbury 
and Bishops Cleeve 
cemetries. 

H Head of 
Community 
Services 

Apr-17.                     
Apr-18.                        
Dec-18 

Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken - 
implemented 

This was picked up as part of 
the 2018/19 Ubico client 
monitoring audit. A KPI in 
relation to the non-completion of 
cemeteries work has been 
established as part of the review 
of the grass cutting service, and 
reported to Overview and 
Scrutiny. 

18-19 
q4 

Ubico Client 
Monitoring        
2016-17 

A Data Sharing Agreement 
should be established 
between Tewkesbury 
Borough Council and Ubico 

H Head of 
Community 
Services 

Apr-17.                  
May 18.                  
Oct-18 

Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken - 
implemented 

A signed Data Sharing 
Agreement is now in place.  

18-19 
q4 

Bulky Waste 
Audit 2016-
17 

A Data Retention Policy 
should be developed for 
bulky waste.  

H Head of 
Community 
Services 

Apr-17.                    
May 18.                  
Oct 18 

Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken - 
implemented 

A corporate data retention 
schedule has been drafted- the 
retention of bulky waste data 
has been included in the 
Customer Services retention 
schedule. 

18-
19q4 

NNDR 2014-
15 

The Council’s discretionary 
policy should give 
consideration to the changes 
introduced by the Localism 
Act 2011. 

M Revenues 
and Benefits 
Manager 

Mar-16.                 
Jun-17.                    
Feb-18.                           
Nov 18 

Mar-19 Follow up 
Undertaken - 
implemented 

New policy approved at 
Executive Committee on 
06/03/2019.  

18-19 
q4 

 

94



INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN PROFILE 2018-2019

APRIL - SEPTEMBER

AUDIT COMMENTS ON PROGRESS OF AUDIT DATE OF 

AUDIT 

COMMITTEE 

THAT FINAL 

REPORT 

WAS 

SUBMITTED 

1  General Data Protection Regulation Complete 19-Sep-18

2 Financials e-ordering Complete 12-Dec-18

3 New income system Complete 12-Dec-18

4 Garden waste Complete 19-Sep-18

5 ICT in progress 

6 Council Tax - liability, discounts, exemptions Complete 19-Sep-18

7 Business rates - reliefs and exemptions Complete 12-Dec-18

8 Disabled facility grant - additional funding certification Complete 19-Sep-18

Corporate Improvement 

Homeless storage contract

Complete 

Trade Waste Outstanding Audit Recommendation Review Complete

Internal audit quality assurance and improvement

Workshop prep and presentation Complete

Document Changes Complete

Consultancy & Advice

S106, Cheque and GDPR Advice Complete

Follow-up Reviews

Quarter 1 Follow Ups Complete

Quarter 2 Follow Ups Complete

Audit work brought forward

UBICO - Fleet management 2017-18 Complete 12-Dec-18

Public Services Centre 2017-18 Complete 18-Jul-18

HB 2017-18 Complete 18-Jul-18

Appendix 3

95



INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN PROFILE 2018-2019

OCTOBER - MARCH

AUDIT COMMENTS ON PROGRESS OF AUDIT

DATE OF 

AUDIT 

COMMITTEE 

THAT FINAL 

REPORT WAS 

SUBMITTED

9 Ubico Client Monitoring Complete Mar-19

10 Community Infrastructure Levy Complete Mar-19

11 Ubico Health and Safety in progress

12 General Data Protection Regulation Complete Mar-19

13 Project Management Framework in progress

14 Serious Crime Framework Complete Mar-19

Corporate Improvement 

HR leave/flexi Complete 

Business Continuity Complete 

Pool Car Project Complete 

Internal audit quality assurance and improvement

Annual PSIAS self assessment and development of new Quality 

Assurance and Improvement Programme 

In progress - report to Audit and Governance 

Committee in July 

Consultancy & Advice (incl corporate group representation)

Attendees at Keep Safe, Stay Healthy Group, Project Programme 

Board, Community Infrastruture Levy Working Group 

Follow-up Reviews

quarter 3 follow ups Complete

quarter 4 follow ups Complete 

Appendix 3

96



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee  

Date of Meeting: 28 March 2019 

Subject: Internal Audit Six Month Plan 2019/20 (April-September) 

Report of: Head of Corporate Services  

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive  

Lead Member: Lead Member for Corporate Governance  

Number of Appendices: 1 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) Ref 2010 (Planning) requires that the 
Chief Audit Executive (CAE) is responsible for developing a risk-based plan. Ref 2030 
(Resource Management) requires that the CAE must also ensure that Internal Audit resources 
are appropriate, sufficient and effectively deployed to achieve the plan.  

Recommendation: 

To APPROVE the Internal Audit Six Month Plan 2019/20 (April-September) as detailed in 
Appendix 1.   

Reasons for Recommendation: 

1. The Terms of Reference of the Audit and Governance Committee require Members to 
consider a summary of proposed internal audit activity.  

2. The PSIAS requires that the CAE reports functionally to the Board, an example of 
functional reporting is approving the internal audit plan.  

 
 

Resource Implications: 

The undertaking of an audit will require the support and engagement of individual services.  

Legal Implications: 

None.  

Risk Management Implications: 

If an internal audit plan is not developed and approved then there will be no steer as to where 
audit resources should be deployed.   

If the plan does not give adequate coverage of the internal control environment then resources 
will not be deployed effectively to the higher risk areas. 

 
 
 

97

Agenda Item 12



Performance Management Follow-up: 

The Audit and Governance Committee receive at each meeting, a monitoring report on 
achievement against the plan, and an audit opinion for each individual audit.  Any audit within 
the plan where recommendations have been made to improve control are subject to a follow-
up audit. Progress in implementing internal audit recommendations is reported to each Audit 
and Governance Committee.  

Environmental Implications:  

None.  

 
 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 Internal audit sits within Corporate Services and has direct reporting to the Chief 
Executive. This arrangement demonstrates compliance with PSIAS ref 1110 – 
organisational independence, as it allows the Head of Corporate Services (delegated as 
CAE within the Audit Charter) to report to a level within the organisation that allows the 
internal audit activity to fulfil its responsibilities. Safeguards have been put in place to 
protect the independence of the CAE, given the operational responsibilities of the role.  

1.2 PSIAS Ref 2010 (Planning) requires that the CAE is responsible for developing a risk-
based plan to take into account the requirement to produce an annual internal audit 
opinion. The input of senior management and the Board (Audit and Governance 
Committee) must be considered in the process. The plan has been endorsed by 
Corporate Management Team.   

1.3 

 

 

 

 

As members of the Committee are aware, an external assessment of the internal audit 
activity was undertaken in November 2017. A report on the findings of that assessment 
were presented at Audit Committee on 28 March 2018. Whilst no aspect of the internal 
audit activity was assessed as being non-compliant with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS), recommendations were made to improve the internal audit process. 
A workshop was also held with Committee Members to consider the recommendations 
and action plan in further detail.  A small number of the recommendations related to audit 
planning.  

1.4 As discussed at the workshop, there was agreement to develop a six month audit plan. 
The setting of a six-month plan enables a more flexible approach to be taken to audit 
planning. Rather than setting a rigid annual plan, this approach recognises the changing 
environment the Council operates in, particularly around its transformation agenda. It 
allows audit planning to better track and respond to the audit of developing risk areas.  

1.5 The external assessment recommended that audit planning should consider the strategic 
risks facing the Council. The new corporate risk register will therefore help inform the 
work of internal audit.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

98



2.0 PUTTING TOGETHER THE PLAN  

2.1 The plan provides a total of 200 productive days and is delivered by two full-time 
equivalent (FTE) members of staff. This resource is deemed appropriate, sufficient and 
will be effectively deployed to achieve the plan.  Appropriate refers to the mix of 
knowledge, skills and other competencies need to perform the plan. Sufficient refers to 
the quantity of resources needed to accomplish the plan. Resources are effectively 
deployed when they are used in a way that optimises the achievement of the approved 
plan.  

2.2 The number of days is the net total following allowance for non-working days such as 
weekends and bank holidays, annual leave, sickness and training. A number of days 
have also been included within the plan to support the ongoing implementation of the 
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP). The QAIP has been updated to 
include recommendations from the external assessment on compliance with the PSIAS. 
The overall annual number of days is deemed appropriate to ensure there is adequate 
coverage of the Council’s control environment. The plan attached at Appendix 1 takes 
into account key areas as follows: 

2.2.1 Governance related activity  

 The Council has an assurance framework that contributes towards the effectiveness of 
its overall governance arrangements. On an annual basis the Council must produce an 
Annual Governance Statement. The purpose of the statement is to demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the governance arrangements and, if necessary, identify and take action 
on any significant governance issues that arise. Internal audit work therefore supports 
the completion and integrity of the Annual Governance Statement. In response to 
recommendations made from the PSIAS review, more focus to governance related 
activities such as risk and ethics is included within the audit planning stage.  

2.2.2 Corporate Risk Register  

 It is important the Committee gain assurance that risks reported within the register are 
being managed. Internal audit will on a rolling basis, review individual risks and ascertain 
that mitigating controls are actually in place and working effectively and there is progress 
in implementing actions to mitigate the risk further.   

2.2.3 Corporate Improvement  

 This is an allocation of days, specifically requested by Corporate Management Team. 
This is ad hoc work and can either be of a consultancy or assurance type nature. Using 
the independence of internal audit can help inform Corporate Management Team of 
specific issues when a need arises or utilise internal audit to undertake a piece of work 
where there may not be available resource. Examples of recent work undertaken under 
this heading include: advising upon risk and compliance in relation to the car pool 
project; update of corporate business continuity plan; and procurement. Horizon work 
includes a critical friend review of planning performance agreements.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

99



2.2.4 Fundamental Financial Systems  

 This is the audit review of the key financial systems which inform the year end Statement 
of Accounts. Although internal audit sits within the Chief Executive’s Unit, it still 
recognises its responsibility to support the Head of Finance and Asset Management to 
discharge his duties as the Council’s Section 151 Officer, one of which is to maintain 
sound financial control.  As has been reported previously to the Audit Committee, both by 
internal audit and external audit, the Council has good financial control.  On this basis, 
the financial systems will not necessarily be audited within the half year plan. Particular 
focus will be given to where a material change has occurred in the systems or where an 
audit has not been undertaken for a while to review the key controls of the system.  

2.2.5 Service area related activity 

 These are service related activities that have been risk assessed based upon factors 
such as size of budget, inherent risk, previous audit history and the period since last 
audit.  

2.2.6 Other areas 

  There is an allocation of days under ‘consultancy and advice’. This covers 
representation at corporate groups such as the Procurement Group, Keep Safe, 
Stay Healthy Group, Programme Board and individual project groups such as the 
recently formed Community Infrastructure Levy Working Group. The days also 
cover general advice given on an ad hoc basis such as advice on procurement, 
financial procedure rules, data retention etc.   

 An estimated number of days are allocated for follow-up reviews. This is an 
important element of audit work to provide assurance as to whether audit 
recommendations have been successfully implemented.  

 There is an allocation of days to cover work which is ongoing as at 31 March 
2019.  

 Days allocated for ongoing work to implement the team’s Quality Assurance and 
Improvement Programme (this includes days allocated for the peer review of 
individual audit assignments and supporting documentation, such as working 
papers).  

3.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

3.1 None 

4.0 CONSULTATION  

4.1 Consultation has taken place with Corporate Management Team.  

5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

5.1 Internal Audit Charter.  

6.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

6.1  None.  

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

7.1 None.  

100



8.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

8.1 None. 

9.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

9.1 Internal Audit contribute to value for money through their routine audit work and 
corporate improvement work.  

10.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

10.1 None.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None  
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Corporate Services   
                                       01684 272002 Graeme.Simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Six Month Plan 2019/20 (April to 

September)   
 

101



Appendix 1

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/20 (April-September)

Est No of days Total

Governance 

General Data Protection Regulation 15

Serious crime framework 10 25

Corporate Improvement 30 30

Corporate Risk Register 20 20

Financial 

Debtors 10 10

Service Areas

Ubico 20

ICT 10

Disabled Facility Grants 5

Housing Benefit Subsidy 20 55

Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement 10 10

Consultancy & Advice (incl corporate group representation) 20 20

Follow up reviews 15 15

Audit work brought forward 15 15

Total 200

102



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 28 March 2019 

Subject: Monitoring of Significant Governance Issues 

Report of: Borough Solicitor 

Corporate Lead: Borough Solicitor 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Corporate Governance 

Number of Appendices: 1 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

The report attaches, at Appendix 1, a table incorporating the Significant Governance Issues 
which were identified in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS), approved by the 
Audit Committee on 18 July 2018, and the action to be taken to address them.  The table 
indicates the progress on those specified actions by 1 March 2019, to enable the Audit and 
Governance Committee to monitor progress on these actions as required by the Annual 
Governance Statement.   

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the information set out in Appendix 1 and to review progress against the 
actions. 

Reasons for Recommendation: 

To comply with the requirements of the Review of Effectiveness of the Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement. 

 
 

Resource Implications: 

None arising from this report. 

Legal Implications: 

None arising from this report. 

Risk Management Implications: 

Risk management is an integral part of the Corporate Governance Framework and actions 
taken to mitigate the Significant Governance Issues will also help mitigate related business 
risks. 

Performance Management Follow-up: 

Further review by Audit and Governance Committee when approving the 2018/19 Annual 
Governance Statement will take place in July 2019. 

103

Agenda Item 13



Environmental Implications:  

None. 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 On the 18 July 2018, the Audit Committee approved the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement for 2017/18 which forms part of the Annual Statement of Accounts.  The 
purpose of the Statement is to provide assurance that the Council’s Governance 
Framework is adequate and effective. 

1.2 As part of the Annual Governance Statement, the Council is required to identify the 
Significant Governance Issues faced by the Council and to set out the proposed actions 
to be taken to address those issues and the timescale within which those actions will be 
taken.  The role of the Audit and Governance Committee is to monitor progress on 
actions arising from the Significant Governance Issues identified in the statement. 

2.0 SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

2.1 The table set out at Appendix 1 comprises the Significant Governance Issues identified 
and the proposed action and timescale, with the addition of a further column which 
indicates the progress by 1 March 2019.  There has been progress on all actions, 
although some slight slippage on completion dates has occurred as indicated in the 
progress column. 

3.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

3.1 None. 

4.0 CONSULTATION  

4.1 The Corporate Governance Group has been consulted on progress on the proposed 
actions. 

5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

5.1 Code of Corporate Governance. 

6.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

6.1  None. 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

7.1 None arising from this report. 

8.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

8.1 None. 

9.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

9.1 None. 

104



10.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

10.1 Audit Committee 18 July 2018 – Approval of Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 

Council 24 June 2008 – Approval of Code of Corporate Governance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 
 
Contact Officer:  Borough Solicitor 
 01684 272011 sara.freckleton@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
  
Appendices:  Appendix 1 - Monitoring of Significant Governance Issues 2017/18 
 

105

file:///C:/Documents%20and%20Settings/minettd/Local%20Settings/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/OLK7E1/sara.freckleton@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Appendix 1 

SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 2018/19 
 
 

No. 
Governance 
issue 

Proposed Action Timescale 
Responsible 
Officer/Group 

 
Current Position as at  
1 March 2019 

1. Risk Management  Develop and approve 
strategy 

 Implement corporate risk 
register 

 Member and senior officer 
session on risk appetite 

 

 

December 2018 

 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

Complete – New risk register 
presented at Audit 
Committee on 12 December 
2018 and to be reported at 
each Committee thereafter. 
New strategy approved at 
Executive Committee 16 
January 2019.  

2. Constitution  Review and update the 
Constitution 

December 2018 

 

Head of 
Democratic 
Services 

Revised updated 
Constitution adopted by 
Council on 19 February 
2019. 

3. Business 
Continuity 

 Finalise and test draft 
corporate plan 

September 2018 

 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

Corporate plan updated and 
fully populated. Desktop 
exercise to be set up in 
March 2019.  

106



Appendix 1 

No. 
Governance 
issue 

Proposed Action Timescale 
Responsible 
Officer/Group 

 
Current Position as at  
1 March 2019 

4. Audit Committee 
effectiveness 

 ‘Role of the Audit 
Committee’ training to be 
programmed 

 Review Terms of 
Reference and name of 
Committee 

 Increase the profile of the 
Audit Committee e.g. 
production of annual 
report, six monthly 
newsletter 

 

March 2019 Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

Complete – training has 
been provided to Committee 
Members including ‘meet the 
audit team’, Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS) compliance 
workshop and ‘Role of the 
Audit Committee’. General 
training has been added to 
Member induction 
programme.  

Quarterly meetings are held 
between Internal Audit and 
the Chair of Audit and 
Governance Committee and 
Lead Member for Corporate 
Governance. 

Terms of Reference, name 
of Committee and number of 
Committee Members 
updated as part of the review 
of the Constitution.  

First annual report produced 
– approved by Audit 
Committee 18 July 2018 and 
presented at Council 26 
September 2018. 

107



Appendix 1 

No. 
Governance 
issue 

Proposed Action Timescale 
Responsible 
Officer/Group 

 
Current Position as at  
1 March 2019 

5. General Data 
Protection 
Regulations 
(GDPR) 

 Respond to and resolve 
promptly any breaches 

 Ongoing compliance 
monitoring through 
reviewing GDPR process 
and procedures 

 Monitor Privacy Impact 
Assessment 

 Monitor Action Plan 

March 2019 Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

Ongoing compliance with 
GDPR is monitored through 
a corporate information 
board. The board is chaired 
by the Chief Executive, the 
Council’s designated Senior 
Risk Information Officer. 
Compliance is supported 
through the work of internal 
audit. Individual audit 
opinions have been reported 
to Audit Committee.  

6. Workforce 
development 
strategy 

 Develop and approve 
strategy 

December 2018 Human 
Resources 
Manager 

Overview and Scrutiny 
workshop to consider draft 
strategy – 26 February 2019. 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Agenda 12 
March 2019 for 
recommendation to 
Executive. 

Executive Committee 
Agenda – 3 April 2019 

7. Local Code of 
Corporate 
Governance 

 Develop and approve a 
new code of governance 

March 2019 

 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

The Policy and 
Communications team will 
look to research and develop 
a new code within quarter 1 
of the financial year 
(2019/20) (June 2019) 

 

 

 

108



Appendix 1 

No. 
Governance 
issue 

Proposed Action Timescale 
Responsible 
Officer/Group 

 
Current Position as at  
1 March 2019 

8. Licensing  Deliver licensing action 
plan 

April 2019 Head of 
Community 
Services 

The vast majority of items in 
the action plan have been 
completed.  There are three 
actions outstanding: 

 The review of animal 
welfare fees for the new 
legislation – This is 
underway and new fees 
will be introduced for April 
2019. 

 LOLER certificates and 
safeguarding training – 
Both of these are 
requirements in the new 
draft Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Policy 
which is currently being 
worked through by a 
Licensing Working Group 
and will go to formal 
consultation with the trade 
shortly.  Safeguarding 
training has been carried 
out with drivers and an 
audit to identify those who 
have not attended in in 
progress. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

109



Appendix 1 

No. 
Governance 
issue 

Proposed Action Timescale 
Responsible 
Officer/Group 

 
Current Position as at  
1 March 2019 

 Programme of inspections 
for licenced premises – 
This element has not 
progressed due to there 
being no Licensing Officer 
in post.  A new Senior 
Licensing Officer has 
been appointed and is 
due to start 4 March 
2019. At this point the risk 
assessments will be 
carried out. 

 

 110



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Audit and Governance Committee  

Date of Meeting: 28 March 2019  

Subject: Corporate Risk Register 

Report of: Head of Corporate Services 

Corporate Lead: Chief Executive  

Lead Member: Lead Member for Corporate Governance 

Number of Appendices: 1 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

Tewkesbury Borough Council has a risk management framework and this is set out in the risk 
management strategy approved by Executive Committee on 16 January 2019. Risk 
management is an intrinsic element of good, effective management and should not be seen as 
a ‘bolt on’. The strategy sets out the risk management approach around the identification, 
analysis, prioritisation and management of risk. A key element of the strategy is capturing key 
corporate risks through a corporate risk register. This register is presented at each Audit and 
Governance Committee.   

Recommendation: 

To CONSIDER the risks contained within the corporate risk register and assurance that 
the risks are being effectively managed.   

Reasons for Recommendation: 

Risk management is an integral part of the Council’s overall governance framework. It is within 
the Terms of Reference of the Audit and Governance Committee to gain assurance that key 
risks are effectively managed.  

 
 

Resource Implications: 

None arising directly from this report.   

Legal Implications: 

None arising directly from this report. 

Risk Management Implications: 

If the Council does not have in place a corporate risk register then it cannot demonstrate that 
corporate risks are formally considered, scored and managed.  

 
 
 
 

111

Agenda Item 14



Performance Management Follow-up: 

The corporate risk register is considered at each Audit and Governance Committee and, prior 
to this, by Corporate Management Team on a monthly basis. 

Environmental Implications:  

None.  

 
 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 The Council’s risk management strategy formalises the Council’s risk management 
arrangements and sets out the risk management approach around the identification, 
analysis, prioritisation and management of risk. A key element of the strategy is the 
maintenance of a corporate risk register that captures the Council’s key corporate risks.  
The register is a high level document to record in a proportionate manner the key risks 
facing the Council, their risk score and high level management controls that are in place 
to manage individual risks. The scoring matrix within the strategy provides guidance on 
scoring those risks.  

2.0 CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 

2.1 The register is a useful tool to demonstrate in a concise manner that corporate risks are 
being considered and managed. The headings within the register and the scoring of risk 
are all detailed within the risk management strategy. Succinctly, the scoring is based 
around three stages: 

- Gross risk score (the inherent risk without any mitigating controls in place). 

- Current risk score (the assessed risk after the application of controls). 

- Target risk score (proposed risk score by applying future controls, if the current 
risk score is deemed to be too high). 

2.2 The format of the register is one which is commonly used throughout local government. 
There is no statutory requirement to have a register in place but is seen as good 
practice. It also helps the Audit and Governance Committee fulfil its risk management 
responsibilities. Internal Audit will support the Audit and Governance Committee in 
gaining assurance that the risks are being effectively managed. Days will be allocated 
within future internal audit plans to review the register and give assurance to the 
Committee around such things as: 

- Is the register complete? Are there any risks missing? 

- The controls detailed in the register – are they actually in place and working 
effectively? 

- Future actions – is there assurance they will be implemented within appropriate 
timescales? 

 

 

 

 

 

112



2.3 The register in its current format was first presented at the Audit Committee on 12 
December 2018. The risk register template has been amended to include a ‘comments’ 
box below each risk. This provides opportunity for each risk owner to provide an update 
on the status of that risk. For example, if the risk score has been downgraded as a 
result of effective control action being implemented or, alternatively, if the risk score has 
increased. An increase could happen through a number of scenarios, for example if an 
internal audit has concluded that a mitigating control is not effective.   

2.4 The risk register is presented at Corporate Management Team on a monthly basis and 
further reviewed by the Corporate Governance Group. This group is chaired by the 
Borough Solicitor. Other attendees are the Lead Member for Corporate Governance, a 
representative from the Counter Fraud Unit, Head of Corporate Services and Head of 
Finance and Asset Management. Following recent review by Corporate Management 
Team and Corporate Governance Group, two new risks have been added to the 
register. These are shown in bold on the risk register and relate to Brexit and fraud. The 
risk register can be found at Appendix 1.  

3.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

3.1 None. 

4.0 CONSULTATION  

4.1 None. 

5.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

5.1 Risk Management Strategy.  

6.0 RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES  

6.1  None.  

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property) 

7.1 None.  

8.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/ 
Environment) 

8.1 None. 

9.0 IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health 
And Safety) 

9.1 Mitigation of risk will help the Council achieve its objectives. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

113



10.0 RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS  

10 .1 None.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: None  
 
Contact Officer:  Head of Corporate Services  
                                       01684 272002 Graeme.Simpson@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
 
Appendices:  Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register  
                                        
                                         

114



Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 
 

 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
  

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk 
Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
ri

s
k

 

s
c
o

re
 

Identified risk mgt 
action  points 

T
a
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

1 The uncertainty and 
volatility of council 
funding streams, 
including Business 
Rates Retention and 
New Homes Bonus, 
means that long term 
business planning is 
difficult and subject to 
significant change 

 The Council received £3.2m from 
NHB and £2.3m from retained 
business rates in 2017-18. 
 NHB is subject to annual review 
and amendments by Central 
Government including a review of 
the deadweight reduction 
Business rates is a volatile 
income stream as a result of 
successful appeals. In addition, a 
move to a 75% retention scheme 
is planned but a detailed scheme 
is not in place. Uncertainty exists 
over a number of issues 
including: 

 How appeals are dealt 
with 

 How retained funding is 
split in two tier areas 

 How and when the 
system is reset to 
ensure and equitable 
distribution 

5 4 20 Growth of tax base 
is substantial and 
protects council 
from significant 
NHB losses. 
 
Council does not 
use 100% of NHB 
to support base 
budget. 
 
Accumulated 
provisions within 
existing retained 
rates scheme 
 
Involvement and 
understanding of 
emerging 75% 
retention scheme 
 
Development of 
other funding 
streams such as 
Council Tax and 
Commercial 
properties 
 

Head of 
Finance & 
Asset 
Managemen
t 

15 Further development of 
alternative income streams 
to reduce dependence on 
these funding streams 
 
Clarification of intended 75% 
rates retention scheme 
 
Early confirmation from 
Government of intentions 
with regards to NHB scheme 

6 

Comments:  

No clarification as yet to the future of all the major financing streams within the Governments control. Two consultations have just ended but we do not expect any further clarity 
until at least the Autumn. 

115



Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 
 

 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
  

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk 
Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
ri

s
k

 

s
c
o

re
 

Identified risk mgt 
action  points 

T
a
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

 
2 Failure to see the 

delivery of residential 
and business growth 
within the Borough will 
have a significant 
impact within the MTFS 
planning  

Growth within the Borough will 
attract significant additional 
funding streams by means of 
Council Tax, NHB and retained 
business rates. 
 
Given the reductions in core 
government grant and the 
increasing cost of delivering 
services, the income from growth 
is imperative to ensure a 
balanced MTFS and the ongoing 
delivery of services within the 
Borough 

5 4 20 Growth strategy set 
out in Joint Core 
Strategy 
 
Efficient 
management of DM 
process 
 
Programmes for the 
delivery of 
significant 
infrastructure 
 
Strong relationships 
with key agencies 
such as Homes 
England and GFirst 
LEP 
 
Economic 
Development 
Strategy 
 
Establishment of 
Growth Hub 
 

Corporate 
Managemen
t Team 

15 Approval of Borough Plan 
 
Development and delivery of 
rail strategy 
 
J9 masterplan  
 
Business case 
developments for  J10 
 
Airport development strategy 
 
Identification of opportunities 
to use business rate reliefs 
to support and attract 
business 
 
Implementation of DM 
improvement action plan 
 
Agreement for governance 
of CIL funding to maximise 
infrastructure delivery  

10 

Comments:  

The recently approved MTFS reflects lower levels of residential growth in the Borough in the next five years with growth for 19-20 in line with expectations. No further clarity in 
respect of both the retained business rates and new homes bonus schemes.  
 

116



Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 
 

 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
  

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk 
Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
ri

s
k

 

s
c
o

re
 

Identified risk mgt 
action  points 

T
a
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

 

3 If the ICT network is not 
adequately protected 
then there is a potential 
risk that it could be 
subject to a cyber-
security attack leading 
to loss of systems and 
significant downtime.   

Phishing attacks/Spear phishing 
– untargeted mass emails sent to 
many recipients to acquire 
sensitive information/targeted 
emails designed to look like its 
been sent from a trusted person. 
 
Denial of service (DoS) – hacker 
floods a website with more traffic 
than it can handle. Legitimate 
users are denied access to 
services, downtime of systems. 
 
Malware – forms of harmful 
software executed when it is 
mistakenly downloaded.  
 
Weak credentials – accounts can 
be compromised if not secure. 
Reusing credentials on multiple 
systems makes it easier for a 
hacker to move around the 
network.  
 
All or combination can lead to; 
 

 Loss of reputation and 
trust 

 Financial loss – 
disruption to service 

5 5 25 Patch management 
 
Penetration testing 
 
Internal phishing 
awareness 
exercises 
 
PSN compliance  
 
Firewall 
management 
 
 
 
 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services  

12 Review potential of cyber 
insurance  
 
Review cyber security 
arrangements based upon 
Local Government 
Association best practice 
survey 
 
 

9 

117



Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 
 

 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
  

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk 
Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
ri

s
k

 

s
c
o

re
 

Identified risk mgt 
action  points 

T
a
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

delivery, cost of 
restoring systems  

 Legal implications – 
personal data breach 
could lead to a 
significant fine 

 

Comments:  

A review of the council’s cyber security arrangements is currently taking place with a full report to Audit and Governance Committee in July. A grant of £17.5k has been 
successfully obtained from the LGA which will support further training and awareness for staff and members, technical training for ICT staff and additional consultancy and advice 
on cyber security risk. In response to the LGA survey, governance arrangements for cyber security are being developed and will be detailed in a cyber security protocol. This 
includes quarterly, intelligence led updates to corporate management team (acting as the cyber security board). We have also signed up to the Warning, Advice and Reporting 
(WARP) south west network. With regards to Public Sector Network compliance, the annual penetration test of the network is currently taking place. In terms of good practice, an 
emerging action is to undertake more regular penetration testing, ideally from different providers.  
 

4 If business continuity 
planning is not in place 
then there is a risk the 
council would struggle 
to deliver its services in 
the event of an incident  

Does the council understand the 
major threats and risk to the 
business operations? 
 
Is a business continuity plan in 
place? 
 
Is the plan tested for various 
scenarios? 
 
Have priority systems been 
identified? 
 
A BC incident could be any of the 
following; 

 ICT downtime 

4 4 16 Individual service 
continuity plans 
 
Draft corporate plan 
 
ICT disaster 
recovery  
 
 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services 

12 Finalise and test draft plan. 
 
Alternative premises solution 

9 

118



Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 
 

 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
  

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk 
Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
ri

s
k

 

s
c
o

re
 

Identified risk mgt 
action  points 

T
a
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

 Major staff absence 

 Property access 

 Supply chain failure 
 

Comments: 

The corporate business continuity plan has been finalised and in the first instance will now be subject to a desk top test exercise. This will be facilitated by the Civil Protection 
Team. Additional testing will then take place with services, putting their individual service plans to the test. Internal Audit are in the process of auditing ICT disaster recovery 
arrangements.  
 
 

5 If the council is not 
compliant with General 
Data Protection 
Requirement then there 
is a risk of financial 
penalties and adverse 
publicity. 

GDPR came into force in May 
2018. Essentially it makes 
organisations more accountable 
for data. E.g. what personal data 
is held, where it came from and 
who it is shared with plus a 
greater focus on consent. Fines 
rising from £500,000 to 20 million 
euro in the event of non-
compliance.  

4 4 16 Data Protection 
Policy  
 
Governance 
structure in place 
eg Information 
Board, Data 
Protection Officer 
appointed, 
designated Senior 
Information Risk 
Owner, Business 
Administration 
Officer  
 
Breach reporting 
framework 
 
Staff awareness 
training 
 

Head of 
Corporate 
Services  

12 Rollout of e-learning module 
 
Implementation of related 
audit recommendations  
 
Implementation of GDPR 
action plan  

9 

119



Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 
 

 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
  

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk 
Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
ri

s
k

 

s
c
o

re
 

Identified risk mgt 
action  points 

T
a
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

Comments:  

To ensure all staff and members remain focussed on GDPR, and e-learning module will be rolled out corporately on the first anniversary of GDPR. An Information Board meets 
monthly chaired by the Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO) to oversee GDPR compliance. Compliance is supported by the work of internal audit who have undertaken reviews 
of the GDPR framework and reported to Audit and Governance Committee. A published corporate retention policy is nearly complete.  
 
 

6 Ineffective Emergency 
Planning  
 

Failure to deliver support to the 
community in the event of an 
emergency. 
 
Public not warned and informed 
in the event of an emergency 
 
Negative perception of the 
Council by external parties / 
partners/local businesses 
 
Failure to deliver critical services 
in the event of a declared 
emergency or event. Could result 
in significant extra cost over the 
long term  

4 4 16 Trained and willing 
volunteers / staff. 
 
Up to date 
emergency / 
business continuity 
plans. 
 
Regular reviews of 
EP RAG Status 
(quarterly) 
 
Partnership working 
with the LRF and 
other partners e.g. 
Severn Trent 
Water. 
 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

10 Through the Emergency 
Planning Team Leaders 
group ensure that all plans 
and procedures are up to 
date. 
 
Ensure that Emergency 
plans are up to date. 
 
Develop further capacity 
within the organisation to 
assist in the case of an 
emergency (endure all new 
job descriptions reflect this 
as a requirement). 
Up to date equipment 
supplies for rest centres. 
 
Annual audit of equipment 
for rest centres. 
 
 
Carry out a test exercise in 
2018/19 to ensure our EP 
works. 

4 

120



Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 
 

 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
  

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk 
Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
ri

s
k

 

s
c
o

re
 

Identified risk mgt 
action  points 

T
a
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

 
Complete MT training of EP. 
 

Comments: 

There is a programme in place to continually review our emergency planning procedures along with the local resilience forum. Regular reports are brought to the quarterly 
Emergency Planning Team Leaders meeting and also periodically to CMT.  Members of CMT have arranged to go on various EP training. 

 

7 Detrimental impact of 
proposed waste 
changes (Javelin 
Park/waste transfer 
station). 

If the council  is 
directed to direct delivery waste 
to Javelin Park (Energy for Waste 
Plant) then the Council will have 
a significant financial burden both 
in capital and revenue terms for 
2019/20 and ongoing – current 
estimates are approximately 
£1m capital and £1m revenue. 

5 5 25 Officer/member 
negotiation 
with GCC and 
contingency 
plans being drawn 
up to 
minimise 
reputational and 
financial impact on 
TBC 
 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

10 GCC/TBC/CBC officers and 
members have met to try to 
progress a solution. Further 
work is 
taking place to safeguard 
CBC/TBC’s position as far 
as 
possible and mitigate any 
financial 
or reputational risk. Exec / 
CLT are briefed regularly 

4 

Comments:  

Continuing to work closely with Gloucestershire County Council, the Joint Waste Team and Ubico to minimise any disruption to waste services. 
 
 

8 Failure of our waste 
partner to deliver an 
effective service.  

Failure of contractor or partners 
to deliver services or meet 
agreed performance targets leads 
to additional costs or failed 
objectives. 
 
Failure of MRF operator to be 
able to fulfil contract. 

5 3 15 Contract / 
Performance 
monitoring 
processes in place 
and improved. 
 
Established 
government 
arrangements. 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

10 Review of contractual 
arrangements and service 
specifications. 
 
Service review and 
improvement plan for 
grounds maintenance and 
street cleansing. 
 

8 

121



Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 
 

 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
  

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk 
Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
ri

s
k

 

s
c
o

re
 

Identified risk mgt 
action  points 

T
a
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

 
 

Enforcement of contract 
rules. 

Comments:  

Regular contract monitoring is in place and remedial actions taken where necessary. 
 

 
 

9 Use of Swindon Road 
depot. 

Our waste services are currently 
based at the Swindon Road 
Depot in Cheltenham.  The depot 
is currently leased to Ubico by 
Cheltenham Borough Council.  If 
CBC were minded to terminate 
this arrangement then we may 
need to identify a suitable depot 
for Ubico to operate of waste 
services from. 

5 2 10 Lease agreement in 
place. 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

8 Review legal lease 
arrangements at Swindon 
Road Depot. 
 
Consider where a temporary 
depot could operate from in 
an emergency. 
 
Ensure that there are robust 
leasing arrangements in 
place to ensure that we are 
not left without a depot at 
short notice 

5 

Comments:  

Lease arrangements are in place. Working with Cheltenham Borough Council on potential depot plans and locations. 
 
 

10 Safeguarding 
arrangements  
 

That the arrangements and 
implementation of policies and 
procedures by the Council (and 
its partners) are not adequate to 
protect vulnerable adults and 
children who may be at risk of 
significant harm.  The damage to 

5 2 10 Staff awareness of 
safeguarding. 
 
Safeguarding policy 
in place. 
 
Feedback from 

Head of 
Community 
Services 

6 Raising awareness of 
safeguarding policies and 
procedures with staff 
through staff briefings, one 
to ones, PPDs and training. 
 
Review safeguarding policy 

4 

122



Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 
 

 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
  

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk 
Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
ri

s
k

 

s
c
o

re
 

Identified risk mgt 
action  points 

T
a
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

the Council would be mainly 
reputational. 

S.11 annual audit. 
 
Partnership working 
though the District 
Safeguarding 
Network. 
 
Taxi driver DBC 
checks carried out.  
Street Trader DBS 
checks 
implemented. 
 

at earliest opportunity. 
 
Adopt the quality assurance 
framework for safeguarding. 
 
Implement feedback from 
S.11 Audit. 
 
Where necessary ensure 
pre-employment checks / 
DBS checks are carried out. 

Comments:  

New online training is available for staff and members. Regular safeguarding updates via the District Safeguarding Network meeting. A light touch review of the Safeguarding 
Policy indicates that at this point in time it remains fit for purpose. 
 
 

11 Failure to maintain 
council assets and 
ensure ongoing 
tenancies could result 
in significant cost and 
lost income 

The Council has a significant 
property portfolio encompassing 
both operational and investment 
assets. For example, the total 
commercial portfolio is £39.5m 
producing an annual gross 
income of £2.4m. A further £6.7m 
is available within the capital 
programme to support the 
portfolio. 
 

5 4 20 Recent 
refurbishment of 
service related 
property 
 
Establishment of 
annual contribution 
to Asset 
Maintenance 
Programme 
 
Commercial 
investment reserve 

Head of 
Finance and 
Asset 
Managemen
t 

6 Establishment of long term 
asset maintenance 
programme, including 
allocation of required funding 
 
Recruitment of additional 
Property Officer 

3 

123



Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 
 

 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
  

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk 
Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
ri

s
k

 

s
c
o

re
 

Identified risk mgt 
action  points 

T
a
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

 
Trained and 
experienced staff 
 
Appointment of 
external investment 
support 
 

Comments:  

Annual contributions being made to the commercial property reserve from gross rental income and contributions being made from new homes bonus towards service assets. New 
Property Officer in place and conducting a review of maintenance requirements on all council assets. 
 
 

12 Treasury management 
decisions with the 
wrong focus could be 
costly over the long-
term  

Making investment decisions with 
an inappropriate balance 
between risk and reward could 
result in low returns or investment 
principal being lost 
 
An inappropriate balance 
between minimising cost with 
short term borrowing and 
securing low long term rates 
could result in significant extra 
cost over the long term  

4 4 16 Appointment of 
external treasury 
advisors 
 
Approval of annual 
treasury strategy 
 
Strong relationships 
with city brokers 
Trained and 
experienced staff 

Head of 
Finance and 
Asset 
Managemen
t 

4  4 

Comments:  

Borrowing strategy currently splits requirement between long term security and benefiting from low short term rates. Treasury outlook from advisors reinforces current approach. 
 

13 If the Growth Hub fails 
to deliver the outputs 
as specified within the 

 Financial risk (£500k) 

 Reputational 

 Wider impact on 

3 3 9 Performance 
monitoring through 
CRM system 

Head of 
Developme
nt 

4 Review staffing as navigator 
is a temporary post 

4 

124



Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 
 

 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
  

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk 
Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
ri

s
k

 

s
c
o

re
 

Identified risk mgt 
action  points 

T
a
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

LEP agreement then 
there is potential that 
the capital grant would 
have to be repaid. 

economic delivery in the 
borough 

Partnership working 
and effective 
governance with 
LEP 
 
Dedicated staff to 
manage hub and 
outputs e.g. 
manager and 
navigator 
 
Promotion through 
business networks 
 
 
  

Comments:  

The Growth Hub Manager (Growth and Enterprise Manager) regularly monitors the outputs and reports them on a regular basis.  Effective promotion of the hub and its events 
provide publicity to maximise outputs. The Head of Development Services is considering options to ensure that the service has the capacity to deliver the outputs and objectives. 
 
 

14  If the council’s fraud 
and corruption 
framework is not 
robust then this 
leaves the council 
vulnerable to 
potential fraud and 
corruption.  
 

 Financial loss 

 Adverse reputation  

 Impact on staff morale 

4 4 16 Counter Fraud 
Unit 
 
Internal Audit 
 
Policy framework 
incl code of 
conduct  

Head of 
Finance & 
Asset Mgt 

9 Review of key policies eg. 
whistleblowing, anti fraud 
and corruption  
 
Deliver actions within 
serious crime checklist  
 
programme of officer and 
member training to be 
implemented 

4 

125



Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register 
 
 

 
 

Code Risk score Risk Management view 

Red 16 – 25 Must be managed down to reduce risk scores in the next year 

Amber  5 – 15 Seek to improve the risk score in the medium term 

Green 1-4 Tolerate and monitor 

R
is

k
 r

e
f 

Corporate risk 
identified  
  

Impact assessment / 
comment 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
  

S
c
o

re
 (

1
-5

) 

G
ro

s
s
 r

is
k
 

s
c
o

re
 Mitigating  

Controls 
Risk 
Owner  

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
ri

s
k

 

s
c
o

re
 

Identified risk mgt 
action  points 

T
a
rg

e
t 

ri
s
k
 

s
c
o

re
  

15 The uncertainty over 
Brexit leads to an 
adverse impact on 
council services and 
its communities.  

 Potential fuel 
shortages 

 Data transfer 
implications 

 Supply chain delays  

 Economic impact  

 Election – impact on 
resource   

4 4 16 Business 
continuity and 
contingency 
planning 
 
Intelligence and 
networking eg 
Local Resilience 
Forum, 
government  
agencies  
 
Government 
funding of £35k 

Corporate 
Manageme
nt Team  

16  On-going participation in 
multi-agency network  
 
Potential support to small 
businesses through 
Growth Hub 
 
Glos LRF undertaking an 
audit of countywide fuel 
storage capacity 
 
Data storage assessment  

212 

 

126


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Audit and Governance Committee Work Programme
	6 External Auditor's Certification Year End Letter March 2018
	7 External Auditor's Audit Plan 2018/19
	8 Statement of Accounting Policies
	Appendix A - Accounting Policies
	Accounting Policies


	9 Annual Safeguarding Update
	Appendix 1 - Safeguarding Audit Update

	10 Call-In of Outstanding Internal Audit Recommendations
	Appendix 1 - Call in of outstanding audit recommendations

	11 Internal Audit Plan Monitoring Report
	Appendix 1 - Audit Opinions
	Appendix 2 - Outstanding Audit Recommendations - Quarter 4 2018-19 Follow Up
	Appendix 3 - Audit plan status

	12 Internal Audit Six Month Plan 2019/20
	Appendix 1 -  Audit Plan 2019-20 Apr-Sept

	13 Monitoring of Significant Governance Issues
	Appendix 1 - Monitoring of Significant Governance Issues

	14 Corporate Risk Register
	Appendix 1 - Corporate risk register




